
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT 

OF NOTICE OF MEETING 

The undersigned members of the Board of Education of Millard, District #017, Omaha, 

Nebraska, hereby acknowledge receipt of advance notice of a meeting of said Board of 

Education and the agenda for such meeting held at 7:OO P .M. on 

Januasy 22, -7 2007 at Don Stroh Administrative Center 

5606 South 147th Street Omaha, NE 68 137 

Dated this 22nd day of Januasy ,2007. 

Brad Burwell 

Dave Anderson 

1- 
[{7)/i;l.Y bI, d []IU L,L ([# ,i,/ .u. uA, 
Corinne Wardian - Millard South High School 



PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

The State of Nebraska, 
District of Nebraska, 
County of Douglas, 

City of Omaha, 

J. BOYD 

being duly sworn, deposes and says that she is 

LEGAL EDITOR 

of THE DAILY RECORD, of Omaha, a legal newspaper, printed and 
published daily in the English language, having a bona fide paid 
circulation in Douglas County in excess of 300 copies, printed in 
Omaha, in said County of Douglas, for more than fifty-two weeks last 
past; that the printed notice hereto attached was published in THE 
DAILY RECORD, of Omaha, on 

January 19, 2007 

State of Nebraska. 

Publisher's Fee $ 12 .50 me this 

Additional Copies $ 



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - JANUARY 22,2007 

NAME: REPRESENTING: 

,e-., 



BOARD OF EDUCA TION MEETING - JANUARY 22,2007 

NAME: REPRESENTING: 



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

  

  

JANUARY 22, 2007

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

REGULAR MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147th STREET

JANUARY 22, 2007

AGENDA
A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President before the meeting begins.

E. Routine Matters*
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – Monday, January 8, 2007
2. *Approval of Bills
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File
4. Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting – January 15, 2007

F. Information Items
1. Employees of the Month
2. Superintendent’s Comments
3. Board Comments/Announcement
4. Report from Student Representatives

G. Unfinished Business:

H. New Business
1. Approval to Establish New Board Committee Positions
2. Approval of Board Appointments
3. Approval of 2008-2009 Calendar
4. First Reading of Policy 4173 – Human Resources – Drug-Free Workplace
5. Approval of Rule 6675.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Exempt

Schools: Requests for Programs, Services or Materials
6. Approval of Rule 6680.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Nonpublic

Schools: Requests for Programs, Services or Materials
7. Audit Management Letter
8. Award Construction Contract for Upchurch Elementary
9. Award Contract for Sandoz Pre-Purchase Items
10. Administrators for Hire or Reassignment
11. Approval of Personnel Actions: Leave(s) of Absence, Resignation(s), Amendment to

Continuing Contract(s), Voluntary Separation Program, and New Hires

2



Agenda
January 22, 2007
Page 2

I. Reports
1. Bond Construction Report
2. Non-Bond Construction Report
3. Quarterly Operation and Maintenance Report
4. Quarterly Food Service Report
5. Quarterly Investment Report
6. Norris Montessori Program Evaluation
7. Legislative Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 5, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.
2. Retired Teacher Luncheon on Friday, February 9, 2007 at 12:00 Noon at DSAC
3. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 12, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Retired Administrator’s Luncheon on Friday, February 16, 2007 at 12:00 Noon at DSAC
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 19, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
6. Town Hall Meeting at Millard West High School on February 26, 2007 at 7:00 p.m.
7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 5, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.
8. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 12, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
9. Town Hall Meeting at Millard North High School on March 13, 2007 at 7 p.m.
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 19, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
11. Town Hall Meeting at Millard South High School on March, 26, 2007 at 7 p.m.

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

3



.BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

REGULAR MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

JANUARY 22, 2007

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda
items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting.

*E.1. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes –
January 8, 2007. (See enclosure.)

*E.2. Motion by , seconded by , to approve the bills. (See
Enclosures.)

*E.3. Motion by , seconded by , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.
(See enclosure.)

E.4. Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting – January 15, 2007

F.1. Employees of the Month

F.2. Superintendent’s Comments

F.3. Board Comments/Announcements

F.4. Report from Student Representatives

H.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to establish board committee
positions for the Superintendent’s Business Advisory Committee, and the Superintendent’s PTO
Advisory Group. (See enclosure.)

H.2. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the Board Appointments as
submitted. (See enclosure.)

H.3. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the School Calendar for
2008-2009. (See enclosure.)

H.4. First Reading of Policy 4173 – Human Resources – Drug Free Workplace

4



Administrative Memorandum
January 22, 2007
Page 2

H.5. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 6675.1 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Exempt Schools: Requests for Programs, Services or Materials. (See
enclosure.)

H.6. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 6680.1 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Nonpublic Schools: Requests for Programs, Services or Materials.
(See enclosure.)

H.7. Management Audit Letter. [No Action Required.] (See enclosure.)

H.8. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, It is recommended that the contract for
the construction of Elementary #25 (Upchurch Elementary School) be awarded to Upland Construction
Company in the amount of $6,917,000 with such amount including Alternates CC-1, CC-2, and CC-6 and that
the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to sign any and all contracts
related to such project. (See enclosure.)

H.9. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, It is recommended that the contract for the
pre-purchase items for the Sandoz Elementary summer construction project be awarded to Carrier Corporation
in the amount of $ 374,783 and that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and
directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure.)

H.10. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Administrators for Hire:
Brian Begley , principal at Millard North High School; Colleen Beckwith, Principal at Neihardt
Elementary School; Matthew Dominy, Principal at Cody Elementary, Melissa Gilbert, Principal at
Ackerman Elementary; Carrie Novotny-Buss, Principal at Ezra Millard Elementary; Paula Peal,
Principal at Cather Elementary, and the re-assignment of Susan Anglemyer as Principal at Upchurch
Elementary School. (See enclosure.)

H.11. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions:
Leave(s) of Absence, Resignation(s), Amendment to Continuing Contract(s), Voluntary Separation
Program, and New Hire(s). (See enclosure.)

I. Reports:
1. Bond Construction Report
2. Non-Bond Construction Report
3. Quarterly Operation and Maintenance Report
4. Quarterly Food Service Report
5. Quarterly Investment Report
6. Norris Montessori Program Evaluation
7. Legislative Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 5, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street.
2. Retired Teacher Luncheon on Friday, February 9, 2007 at 12:00 Noon at DSAC

5



Administrative Memorandum
January 22, 2007
Page 3

3. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 12, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

4. Retired Administrator’s Luncheon on Friday, February 16, 2007 at 12:00 Noon at DSAC
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 19, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
6. Town Hall Meeting at Millard West High School on February 26, 2007 at 7:00 p.m.
7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 5, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street.
8. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 12, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
9. Town Hall Meeting at Millard North High School on March 13, 2007 at 7 p.m.
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 19, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
11. Town Hall Meeting at Millard South High School on March, 26, 2007 at 7 p.m.

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. Please make
sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single
motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

6



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17 

A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of 
Douglas in the State of Nebraska. This meeting was convened in open and public session at 7:20 
p.m., Monday, January 8, 2007, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th 
Street. 

PRESENT: Brad Burwell, Jean Stothert, Mike Kennedy, Mike Pate, Dave Anderson and, 
Linda Poole 

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on, 
January 5, 2007; a copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this 
meeting was given to all members of the Board of Education and a copy of their 
Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes. 
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of 
Education of this meeting. All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened 
meeting was open to the attendance of the public. 

At 7:00 p.m. Mr. Burwell announced the Public meeting Act is posted on the wall and available 
for public inspection. Mr. Burwell asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll call was taken and all members were present. 

Jean Stothert, vicepresident of the Board of Education, administered the oath of office to Dave 
Anderson, Brad Burwell, and Mike Kennedy. 

"The citizens of the Millard School district have entrusted in you the education of the children in 
this community. 

It is your "moral and ethical responsibility to fknction courageously and impartially to assure the 
greatest good to the greatest number at all times." You "shall represent open-mindedly the entire 
school district ... recognizing that the schools belong to the people." 

You must devote time, thought, and study to school activity in order to make creditable 
decisions. 

You must work with fellow board members in a spirit of harmony and cooperation, in spite of 
differences of opinion. 

You will know that at all times, as an individual, you have no legal authority outside the 
meetings of the board. 

You must resist pressure to use your position as a school board member to benefit yourself, or 
any other individual or agency, apart from the total interest of the school district. 

You must know that under all circumstances the primary function of the Board is to establish 
policies by which the schools are to be administered. 



Board of Education Minutes 

January 8,2007 

Page 2 

I, DAVE ANDERSON, BRAD BURWELL, MIKE KENNEDY, do solemnly swear that I will 

support the Constitution of the United States and the constitution of the State of Nebraska, 

against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same; 

that I take this obligation -freely and without mental reservation or for purpose of evasion: and 

that I will faithfully and impartially perform the duties of a member of the Millard School Board; 

according to law, and to the best of my ability. And I do further swear that I do not advocate, nor 

am I a member of any political party or organization that advocates the overthrow of the 

government of the United States or of this state by force or violence; and that during such time as 

I am in this position I will not advocate nor become a member of any political party or 

organization that advocates the overthrow of the government of the United States or of this state 

by force or violence. So help me God. 

Dave Anderson, Brad Burwell, Mike Kennedy, do you accept the responsibility of the 
position on the Millard School Board? I declare you, Dave Anderson, Brad Burwell, 
Mike Kennedy, an official board member of Millard School District #17. 

As Vice President of the Millard School Board, "I congratulate you and welcome you to one of 
the most important volunteer positions you will ever hold." 

Election of Officers: 

PRESIDENT: 

Brad Burwell - 5 
Mike Pate - 1 

Brad Burwell was declared President. 

VICE PRESIDENT: 

Jean Stothert - 4 
Mike Kennedy - 1 
Mike Pate - 2 

Jean Stothert was declared Vice President. 

SECRETARY: 

Mike Kennedy - 5 
Mike Pate - 1 

Mike Kennedy was declared Secretary. 



Board of Education Minutes 
January 8,2007 
Page 3 

Treasurer: 

Mike Pate - 6 

Mike Pate was declared Treasurer. 

Motion by, Jean Stothert, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the Board of Education Minutes of 
December 18,2006, to approve the bills, and to receive the Treasurer's Report and place on file. 
Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried. 

Jean Stothert summarized the Committee of the Whole Meeting from Monday, December 18, 
2006. The agenda included an orientation session for newly elected board member, Dave 
Anderson. 

Showcase highlighted AP College Board Scholars and International Baccalaureate Diploma 
Recipients. 

Superintendent's Report: 

1. At the Committee meeting next Monday there will be an update on the non-traditional 
small high school. If board members have any additional agenda items they were 
asked to let Dr. Lutz know. 

Comments from the Board: 

Mike Pate welcomed Dave Anderson to the Board, and told him he will enjoy working with him. 

Linda Poole also welcomed Dave Anderson to the Board. She noted that Mr. Anderson has 
always been active in Millard, and that he will do a great job. 

Jean Stothert reported that she attended the Governor's inauguration ceremony. 

Mrs. Stothert said she will be having her knee surgery this Thursday. 

Dave Anderson said he appreciated all of the support and confidence from his family, his 
employer, board members, and the administration. He continued by saying he was very excited, 
and will work hard for the people in the Millard Public Schools. 

Mr. Anderson said of all of his volunteer efforts, being involved in Millard was one of his 
favorites. 

Mike Kennedy congratulated Dave Anderson for running for the open board position, and he will 
enjoy working with Dave. 

Mr. Kennedy said he has talked with Michael Reagan, President Reagan's son, about coming to 
the dedication of the new elementary school which was named for President Reagan. The 



Board of Education Minutes 
January 8,2007 
Page 4 

dedication will probably take place in late September or early October. Amy Friedman is 
working with the family on the dedication plans. 

Mr. Kennedy reported to the board he will be attending the Nebraska Association of School 
Board's Executive meeting in a couple of weeks, and if anyone had something they wanted him 
to take to the meeting to let him know. 

Brad Burwell congratulated Dave Anderson on being on the Board of Education. Mr. Bunvell 
said even though he has been sworn in other times it never loses its impact on him, and he 
explained that he takes it very seriously. He welcomed Dave and told him he will be a great 
addition to the Millard School Board. 

Mr. Bunvell notified everyone that he will be attending the Retired Teacher luncheon, but will 
not be able to attend the Retired Administrator luncheon. 

Mr. Bunvell said he has chosen three dates he was looking at for the Town Hall meetings, that 
are held in the District annually. He asked board members to check there calendars for Monday, 
February 26, 2007; Tuesday, March 13, 2007, and Monday, March 26, 2007. He asked board 
members to get back to him if they had a conflict. This is a time when the community has an 
opportunity to ask questions of the board members and administration. 

Derek Collins, student representative from Millard North High School, Corinne Wardian, student 
representative from Millard South High School, and Jordan Carroll, student representative from 
Millard West High School gave their reports on academic and athletic activities that have taken 
place at their respective high schools. 

Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Jean Stothert, to authorize the district administration to work 
with the district lobbyist, metro superintendents and legislators to secure passage of legislation 
consistent with the tenets of the Joint Statement of the Superintendents. Upon roll call vote, all 
members voted aye. Motion carried 

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve Rule 5 1 10.1 - Pupil 
Services - Transfer of Students within the District. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. 
Motion carried. 

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Jean Stothert, to adopt the resolution regarding Enrollment 
Standards for the Enrollment Option Program for 2007-2008 school year. Upon roll call vote, all 
members voted aye. Motion carried. 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve guidelines for transfers within the 
District for 2007-2008 school year. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried. 

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Jean Stothert, that no further enrollment option waivers be 
accepted after August 10, 2007, for students requesting to enter the Millard school district for the 2007- 
2008 school year unless required by law. Students may be granted a waiver to leave the Millard school 
district anytime during the 2007-2008 school year. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. 
Motion carried. 



Board of Education Minutes 
January 8,2007 
Page 5 

Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Jean Stothert, to continue to publish legal notices of regular 
and special meetings of the Board of Education in the Daily Record, unless the deadline dictates 
publication in the World-Herald or Midlands Business Journal. Upon roll call vote, all members 
voted aye. Motion carried. 

Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Dave Anderson, hat the district designate the First National 
Bank of Omaha and the Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund Plus as the primary 
depositories for school district h d s  with the further designation of Wells Fargo Bank, US Bank, 
Great Western Bank, and Omaha State Bank for school activity fund deposits. Upon roll call 
vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried. 

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve Personnel: Actions: Leave of 
Absences: Kelli Hjelm and Jessica Reade, Amendment to Continuing Contracts: Martha 
Nielsen, and New Hires: Megan Volz, Tonya Fidler, Deanne Erickson, Lindsay Deitloff, and 
Kristin Tex. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried. 

Mr. Burwell notified the board that it will not be necessary to go into Executive Session, because 
there was nothing new to report. 

An Enrollment Report was updated by Jon Lopez. 

Future Agenda ItemsIBoard Calendar: A Committee of the Whole Meeting will be held on 
Monday, January 15, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147& 
Street. The PDK Dinner will be held on Wednesday, January 17,2007 at 5:30 p.m. at the UNO 
Alumni Center. A Board of Education Meeting will be held on Monday, January 22, 2007 at 7 
p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 1 4 7 ~ ~  Street. A Board of Education 
Meeting will be held on Monday, February 5, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147'" Street. A Committee of the Whole Meeting will be held on Monday, 
February 12, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147'~ Street. A 
Board of Education Meeting will be held on Monday, February 19, 2007 at 7 p.m. at the Don 
Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 1 4 7 ~ ~  Street. 

Brad Burwell adjourned the meeting. 



Millard Public Schools
January 22, 2007

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



Minutes 
Committee of the Whole 
January 15,2007 

The members of the Board of Education met for a Committee Meeting on Monday, January 15,2007 at 
7:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street. The agenda for the meeting 
was an update on the non-traditional small high school. 

PRESENT: Brad Burwell, Mike Kennedy, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, and Dave Anderson 

ABSENT: Jean Stothert 

Others in attendance were Keith Lutz, Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter, and other administrators. 

Dr. Lutz opened the meeting by reviewing what took place during a full day retreat to do the 
initial planning for a non-traditional high school that is called for in the District's Strategic Plan 
Strategy 8. Participants in planning session included teachers, students, the architect, higher 
education partners, and a member from the Omaha Chamber of Commerce. 

During October and November the District sent out three traveling teams to various school 
districts across the United State who had comparable schools that had career clusters. Martha 
Bruckner provided a thumbnail sketch as to what each of the schools visited offered in their 
programs, and the strengths and weaknesses of each school were discussed. 

Dr. Lutz reinforced the idea that establishing partnerships with other higher educational 
institutions in the Omaha area was seen as being paramount for the success of the non-traditional 
high school. Furthermore, it was seen that by getting businesses involved and committed they 
could offer students the opportunities for internships, which would be an invaluable possibility. 

Continued collaboration with the Omaha Chamber of Commerce, Metropolitan Community 
College, and UNO will be a vital part in the establishment of the non-traditional high school. 
The partnership with Metropolitan Community College is very important, because they have 
facilities, equipment, and staff in the cluster areas that the district is looking at for this non- 
traditional high school. The continued support of the University of Nebraska at Omaha is also 
important in regards to the dual credit option for the students of Millard. 

Dr. Lutz continued by saying that the three current high schools are not being left out of this 
process. He said he will be working with the high school principals in establishing 9th grade 
academies to help in the transition of students into the career clusters. Students currently 
attending the Millard Learning Center needing an alternative setting would probably fit into the 
school very well. However, there are students attending the Learning Center that will still need 
to be served in a different manner, and there are alternatives being considered on how best this 
would be accomplished. 

The next steps will be to conceptually develop a school along with three to four (or more) career 
modules, which may include 1) health and human sciences, including culinary arts; 2) business, 
finance and manufacturing; 3) engineering, science and technology, and 4) digital media 
communications. We will continue to work with the three high school principals to see what a 



9th grade academy would look like and to consider if there could be any other modules that 
would work in the three comprehensive high schools. One of the upcoming steps will be to have 
the architect provide a preliminary design of what the building might look like. 

There is also a tentative plan to survey students and parents in grades seven through ten to find 
out if the concept of the non-traditional high school appeals to the students and parents, and what 
interest exists in specific career clusters. There may also be focus groups with students 
explaining the concept. 

The board will be updated periodically on the progress of the planning for the non-traditional 
high school. 

Brad Burwell adjourned the meeting at 8: 15 p.m. 

CHAIRMAN 



--- 

PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Don Stroh Administration Center 5606 So. 147th Street * Omaha, NE 681 37-2604 0 (402) 895-8200 Fax (402) 895-8409 

January 17,2007 

TO: Board Members 

FROM: Amy Friedman 

RE: Employees of the Month 

The Employees of the Month for January are Angela Wilder, counselor at Black Elk Elementary 
and Margaret Peiper, special education paraprofessional at Aldrich Elementary. 

MILLARD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Brad Burwell, Julie A. Johnson, Mike Kennedy, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, Jean Stothert, Keith Lutz, Ed.D., Superintendent 

76



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Establish New Board Committee Positions

MEETING DATE: January22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Board of Education

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: Approval XX

BACKGROUND:
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: I would like to establish new
board committee positions for the Superintendent’s Advisory Group and for the
Superintendent’s PTO Advisory Group. By doing this there would be a representative
from the Board of Education at each of those meetings.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: n/a

TIME LINE: n/a

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Brad Burwell

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

77



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

AGENDA ITEM: Board Appointments

DEPARTMENT: Board of Education

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

COMMITTEES BOARD MEMBER
Director of NASB Region 19 Mike Kennedy
Delegate to NASB Delegate Assembly Dave Anderson
Americanism Committee Dave Anderson, Brad Burwell, Jean

Stothert
NASB Legislative Committee Dave Anderson
Metro. Area Boards of Education Jean Stothert
Policy 10,000 Steering Committee Mike Kennedy
Millard Education Foundation
Representative

Mike Pate

Federal Relations Network Mike Pate and Linda Poole
National Federation of Urban Suburban
School Districts (NFUSSD)

Brad Burwell

NASB Government Relations Network Jean Stothert
Superintendent’s Business Advisory Brad Burwell
Superintendent’s PTO Meetings
Representative

Linda Poole

OPTIONS/ALERNATIVE
CONSIDERATIONS: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTIONS: N/A

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

TIME LINE: N/A

PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Brad Burwell

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: _____________________________________

78



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: School Calendar for 2008-2009 
 
MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007 
 
DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Approve the school calendar for 2008-2009. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL    XX      DISCUSSION          INFORMATION ONLY ____ 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Each year the Board of Education adopts a two-year calendar in accordance with policy 6020.    
 
This calendar is built using parameters from the last meeting of the calendar committee.  It is similar to 2007-
2008.  It has 179 student days.  The start date, end date and school breaks are all similar to 2007-2008.  I 
attached a copy of the approved 2007-2008 calendar.   
 
This calendar places one of the staff development days after Labor Day.  The office of staff development feels 
that this placement is better timing for staff development, especially with new staff.        
 
The winter break is again scheduled for two weeks on this calendar. 
 
The last day of school is May 28 if we do not have any snow days.        
 
OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: None 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the School Calendar for 2008-2009 as attached. 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  
        (Signature) 
 
BOARD ACTION: 

79



AUGUST 13 Aug. 13 First Day for Students FEBRUARY 17
M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 Sep. 1 No School - Labor Day
4 5 6 7 8 Sep. 2 No School - District Staff Development 2 3 4 5 6

11 12 13 14 15 Oct. 14 End of First Quarter 9 10 11 12 13
18 19 20 21 22 16 17 18 19 20
25 26 27 28 29 Oct.15-17 No School - Conferences/Professional Development 23 24 25 26 27

SEPTEMBER 20 Nov. 27-28 No School - Thanksgiving Break MARCH
M T W Th F M T W Th F
1 2 3 4 5 Dec. 19 First Semester Ends 2 3 4 5 6
8 9 10 11 12 9 10 11 12 13

15 16 17 18 19 Jan. 5 Second Semester Begins 16 17 18 19 20
22 23 24 25 26 23 24 25 26 27
29 30 Jan. 19 No School - Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 30 31

OCTOBER Feb. 12-13 No School - Conferences/Professional development APRIL 17
M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 3 Feb. 16 No School - Presidents' Day - District Staff Development 1 2 3
6 7 8 9 10 6 7 8 9 10

13 14 15 16 17 Mar. 13 End of Third Quarter 13 14 15 16 17
20 21 22 23 24 20 21 22 23 24
27 28 29 30 31 Mar. 16 No School - Teacher Work Day 27 28 29 30

NOVEMBER 18 Apr. 6-10 Spring Break MAY 19,20
M T W Th F M T W Th F

May 1 Half-Day for Middle Schools (5th Grade Orientation) 1
3 4 5 6 7 4 5 6 7 8

10 11 12 13 14 May 25 No School - Memorial Day 11 12 13 14 15
17 18 19 20 21 18 19 20 21 22
24 25 26 27 28 Jun 3 Last Day of School - Half Day 25 26 27 28 29

DECEMBER 15 This calendar includes four days of school that JUNE 3
M T W Th F may be used in case of inclement weather.  If fewer M T W Th F
1 2 3 4 5 (or more) days are used, the last day of school  1 2 3 4 5
8 9 10 11 12 will be adjusted accordingly. 8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19 15 16 17 18 19
22 23 24 25 26 Quarter Dates/Student Days 22 23 24 25 26
29 30 31 Oct. 14 43 days 29 30

Dec. 23 43 days 86

JANUARY 19 Mar. 13 46 days JULY 0
M T W Th F June 3 47 days 93 M T W Th F

1 2 Total 179 days 1 2 3
5 6 7 8 9 6 7 8 9 10

12 13 14 15 16 No School for Students 13 14 15 16 17
19 20 21 22 23 Make-up snow days 20 21 22 23 24
26 27 28 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

Board Approved:  

   2008-09 School Calendar
*Middle and high school calendars vary and are available at <www.mpsomaha.org>

      10,10

     10,11

80



AUGUST 15 Aug. 13 First Day for Students FEBRUARY 18
M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 3 Sept. 3 No School - Labor Day 1
6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8

13 14 15 16 17 Oct. 12 End of First Quarter 11 12 13 14 15
20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22
27 28 29 30 31 Oct. 22-26 No School - Conferences/Professional development 25 26 27 28 29

SEPTEMBER 19 Nov. 22-23 No School - Thanksgiving Break MARCH
M T W Th F M T W Th F
3 4 5 6 7 Dec. 21 First Semester Ends 3 4 5 6 7

10 11 12 13 14 10 11 12 13 14
17 18 19 20 21 Jan. 7 Second Semester Begins 17 18 19 20 21
24 25 26 27 28 24 25 26 27 28

Jan. 21 No School - Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 31

OCTOBER Feb. 14-15 No School - Conferences APRIL 17
M T W Th F M T W Th F
1 2 3 4 5 Feb. 18 No School - Presidents' Day 1 2 3 4
8 9 10 11 12 7 8 9 10 11

15 16 17 18 19 Mar. 13 End of Third Quarter 14 15 16 17 18
22 23 24 25 26 21 22 23 24 25
29 30 31 Mar. 14 No School - Teacher Work Day 28 29 30

NOVEMBER 20 April 7-11 Spring Break MAY
M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 May 2 Half-Day for Middle Schools (5th Grade Orientation) 1 2
5 6 7 8 9 5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16 May 26 No School - Memorial Day 12 13 14 15 16
19 20 21 22 23 19 20 21 22 23
26 27 28 29 30 June 3 Last day of school - Half Day 26 27 28 29 30

DECEMBER 15 This calendar includes four days of school that JUNE 2
M T W Th F may be used in case of inclement weather.  If fewer M T W Th F
3 4 5 6 7 (or more) days are used, the last day of school  2 3 4 5 6

10 11 12 13 14 will be adjusted accordingly. 9 10 11 12 13
17 18 19 20 21 16 17 18 19 20
24 25 26 27 28 Quarter Dates/Student Days 23 24 25 26 27
31 Oct. 12 44 days 30

Dec. 21 43 days 87

JANUARY 18 Mar. 13 45 days JULY 0
M T W Th F June 3 47 days 92 M T W Th F

1 2 3 4 Total 179 days 1 2 3 4
7 8 9 10 11 7 8 9 10 11

14 15 16 17 18 No School for Students 14 15 16 17 18
21 22 23 24 25 Make-up snow days 21 22 23 24 25
28 29 30 31 28 29 30 31

Approved: January 16, 2006

    19,21

   2007-08 School Calendar - *Elementary & Middle School
                                                *High school calendars vary and are available at <www.mpsomaha.org>.

      10,8

      9,11

81



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Human Resources Policy 4173
First Reading on January 22, 2007
Approval on February 5, 2007

Meeting Date: January 22, 2007
February 5, 2007

Department Human Resources

Title and Brief
Description: Human Resources Policy 4173

Action Desired: Approval

Background: The policy and rules are due for review and in working with Duncan
Young we have decided to divide the Drug and Alcohol Rule into a
separate Drug Rule and a separate Alcohol Rule. You will note that
we are recommending stronger penalties for violating the rules. You
will also note that employees who are reasonably suspected to be
under the influence of alcohol will be required to comply with alcohol
testing. Likewise, employees will be required to submit to a drug test
upon reasonable suspicion of such violation. Employees will be
required to inform the Associate Superintendent of Human Resources
of all alcohol and/or drug related criminal convictions within five days
of the conviction. We have included 4173.1, 4173.2, and 4173.3 for
your convenience.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N/A

Recommendations: Approval

Strategic Plan
Reference: In partial compliance/completion of the Superintendent’s goals.

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N/A

Timeline: January 22, 2007

Responsible
Persons: Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Steve Moore

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________________________

82



Personnel

Drug-Free Workplace 4173

The Millard School District will provide a drug-free workplace in accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of
1988 and its implementing regulations.

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance by a District
employee on District property is prohibited. The District shall establish a drug-free awareness program and shall
notify employees that they are requested required to abide by the drug-free workplace policy of the District, and that
any violation of this policy will result in action against such employee up to and including termination.

The District shall make a continuing good faith effort to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of
its drug-free workplace policy.

Legal Reference: Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 54 C.F.R. 4946(1988)

Related Rules: 4173.1, 4173.2, 4173.3
Policy Millard Public Schools
Adopted: December 18, 1989 Omaha, Nebraska
Reaffirmed: December 7, 1998

83



Human Resources
Drug−Free Workplace: Drug−Free Workplace

4173.1
In order to implement the drug−free workplace policy of the District, the District shall implement the following
rules:

Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the District's workplace and specifying
the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

I. 

Establish a drug−free awareness program to inform employees about:

The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;A. 

The District's policy of maintaining a drug−free workplace;B. 

Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; andC. 

The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

D. 

II. 

Provide each employee with a copy of the statement set forth in paragraph one.III. 

Notify each employee in the statement required by paragraph one that as a condition of employment,
the employee will:

Abide by the terms of the statement; andA. 

Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the
workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.

B. 

IV. 

Notify any federal or state agency for whom grant money is received within ten (10) days after
receiving notice under subparagraph four (b) from an employer or otherwise receiving actual notice of
such conviction.

V. 

Take one of the following actions within thirty (30) days of receiving notice under subparagraph four
(b), with respect to any employee who is convicted;

Take appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination; or

A. 

Require such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

B. 

VI. 

Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug−free workplace through implementation of the
above rules.

VII. 

Related Policy: 4173

Date of Adoption: December 18, 1989

1

84



Date of Last Review: December 7, 1998

The Millard Public School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, gender, marital status, disability, or age in its
employment, programs, and activities.
Questions can be directed to: Superintendent, 5606 S. 147 St.,
Omaha, NE 68137, 402−715−8200.
Privacy Statement

2

85



Revised Rule

Human Resources

Drug-Free Workplace: Alcohol 4173.2

General

The purpose of this rule is to establish standards of conduct for employees as to the use and possession of
alcohol while in the course of their employment or in the discharge of their duties and eliminate the
unlawful use or distribution of alcohol on District property. The rule also applies to acts or conduct which
is illegal under federal, state, or local law. All Millard Public School employees are covered by this rule.
Violation of this rule shall result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.

This Rule shall be administered in accordance with and subject to all applicable District grievance policies
and procedures contained either in collective bargaining agreements or policies and rules of the District,
and pursuant to all constitutional rights, state and federal, to which employees are entitled.

The name of any employee violating this rule shall not be released to the public unless the employee
requests an open hearing with the Board of Education; provided, however, that the Superintendent may
notify law enforcement authorities of any suspected violation of criminal statutes or ordinances.

Definitions

1. Alcohol - any substance subject to the jurisdiction of the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission
and those beverages and alcoholic liquors defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. section 53-103 (Supp. 1989).

2. Distribution - any delivery, sale, transfer, handling, transmitting, administering, giving, or
otherwise making available, alcohol.

3. "Under the influence" - means for the purpose of this policy that the employee is affected by an
alcoholic substance, or the combination of a drug and alcohol, in any detectable manner. The
symptoms of influence are not confined to those consistent with misbehavior or to obvious impairment
of physical or mental ability such as slurred speech or difficulty in maintaining balance. A
determination of influence can be established by professional opinion, a scientifically valid test and, in
some cases, by a lay person's opinion.

4. A District employee shall be deemed in possession of alcohol, if he or she has alcohol, on his or
her person, or under his or her control.

5. E.A.P. - Employee Assistance Program provided by the Millard Public Schools for the benefit of
its employees.

I. Prohibited Conduct

1. Reporting to work, performing job duties or conducting any District business while intoxicated or
otherwise under the influence of alcohol is strictly prohibited and shall subject the District employee to
immediate discipline actions as hereinafter provided. Conduct of an employee giving rise to such
reasonable suspicion shall be reported to the employee's immediate supervisor and documented in a
report

2. Using, or distributing alcohol to minors while on District property, while performing job duties, or
while in the course of the employees' employment, at a District-sponsored student event, or at a student
activity in which the District or other school districts participate, is strictly prohibited and shall subject
the District employee to immediate discipline actions as hereinafter provided.

86



II. Procedure

Any employee suspected of being in violation of this Rule shall be interviewed by his or her immediate
supervisor or administrator as soon as possible to determine whether the employee is in violation of this
Rule or any provisions of this Rule. If necessary, the immediate supervisor or administrator will summon a
second supervisor or administrator to be present at the interview and to assist in the determination.

If the supervisor or administrator determines that there is a reasonable suspicion that the employee
may be in violation of any provision of this Rule, the supervisor or administrator shall immediately notify
the Associate Superintendent for Human Resources, or Designee, who shall interview the employee. If the
Associate Superintendent of Human Resources, or Designee, has a reasonable suspicion that the employee
has violated this rule, he/she shall suspend the employee with pay from his or her duties and, if the
employee is suspected of being under the influence of alcohol, direct that the employee be tested for
alcohol. Employees are required to submit to alcohol testing upon a reasonable suspicion of a violation of
this rule. The employee shall be advised of the required alcohol testing by the Associate Superintendent for
Human Resources, or Designee, and be transported to a location for the administration of such required
test.

The results of the breath test may be used to provide the employee an opportunity to exonerate
himself/herself. If the employee tests negative for alcohol, the employee will not be subject to disciplinary
measures related to violation of the District's alcohol policy and shall be returned to duty. Refusal to submit
to a breath test may be offered in evidence in any grievance proceeding related to the disciplinary action for
violation of the District's Alcohol Policy. The employee may be subject to disciplinary action based on
violations of other District policies and/or rules.

Breath test devices will only be administered by personnel who are properly trained.

Breath test devices will be tested for accuracy and calibrated as necessary pursuant to the Nebraska
Department of Motor Vehicles guidelines.

The employee shall, within a reasonable time, be provided a written statement specifically stating why the
employee was suspended. The Notice shall contain a written acknowledgment of receipt signed by the
employee. Should the employee refuse to sign the acknowledgment of receipt, the refusal shall be so noted
on the receipt by the supervisor or administrator.

The Associate Superintendent/Designee shall undertake such additional investigation as may be necessary,
and shall provide the employee with a written statement within a reasonable time specifically stating:

1. What additional action, other than being suspended from duties, if any, will be taken in accordance
with this Rule; and

2. The date and/or the conditions under which the employee may return to his or her regular duties;
and

3. The employee's due process rights and time limits to appeal by reference to the District's
Grievance procedures or, if applicable, the provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

At all times, each District employee shall make every reasonable effort to ensure that any employee who, in
the course of their employment or in the discharge of duties, is under the influence of alcohol does not
operate a motor vehicle. Should an employee refuse to cooperate and attempt to operate a motor vehicle
when he/she cannot operate it safely or lawfully, law enforcement officials shall be immediately notified.

III. Violations & Penalties

87



Employees of the Millard Public Schools shall not:

1. Report to work under the influence of alcohol.

First offense: Employee will be issued a written reprimand, a mandatory referral to E.A.P. and
suspension of up to five (5) days without pay.

Second offense: Employee will be issued a written reprimand and will be subject to a suspension
without pay for a minimum of twenty days and a maximum of termination of
employment. Mandatory referral to E.A.P. in the event the employee is not terminated.

Third offense: Employee shall be terminated from employment.

2. Use alcohol or beverages containing alcohol while on District property, or while in the course of
the employee's employment or in the discharge of his or her duties thereunder, at a District-sponsored
student event, or at a student activity in which the District or other school districts participate.

First offense: Employee will be issued a written reprimand, a mandatory referral to E.A.P. and
suspension of up to five (5) days without pay.

Second offense: Employee will be issued a written reprimand and will be subject to a suspension
without pay for a minimum of twenty days and a maximum of termination of
employment. Mandatory referral to E.A.P. in the event the employee is not terminated.

Third offense: Employee shall be terminated from employment.

3. Distribute alcohol or beverages containing alcohol to minors while on District property, at a
District-sponsored student event, or at a student activity in which the District or other school districts
participate.

First offense: Employee shall be terminated from employment.

IV. Non-Compliance with Employee Assistance Program

Employees of the Millard School District shall fully comply with and successfully complete the treatment
directed by the District's E.A.P. when the employee is being disciplined for violation of this rule. Failure to
do so shall result in the following discipline:

First offense: The penalty listed under second offense for whatever prohibited conduct caused the
referral to the E.A.P.

Second offense: The penalty listed under third offense for whatever prohibited conduct caused the
referral to the E.A.P.

V. Alternative Disposition

The District may impose a lesser or alternative disposition of the offense if the District deems that a lesser
or alternative disposition is in the best interests of the District and the employee.

VI. Criminal Convictions

If a District employee is convicted of any crime related to the distribution or otherwise making alcohol
available to minors, the employee may be subject to disciplinary action. Such disciplinary action may
include suspension without pay for up to twenty days or termination of employment. An employee
convicted of any crime relating to the possession, use, or distribution of alcohol must notify the Associate
Superintendent of Human Resources or designee no later than five days after the conviction. Failure to
timely notify may be grounds for termination of employment.

VII. Education and Counseling

88



Employees are encouraged to participate in the District's substance abuse awareness programs.
Additionally, employees are encouraged to utilize the E.A.P. services provided by the District in seeking
assistance with alcohol problems. An employee's private use of these services on the employee's own
initiative will not jeopardize job security or promotional opportunity. When such use is private and
voluntary, no identifying report of any kind will be made by the E.A.P. to the District unless the employee
so chooses.

Any employee who is disciplined for alcohol use and not terminated shall be referred to the District's
E.A.P. for assessment, counseling, treatment and rehabilitation. This shall be a management referral and, as
such, the employee shall be required to execute the necessary releases so that the E.A.P. may inform the
District whether such employee is in compliance with directed treatment.

The district will provide training for its administrators and supervisors to recognize typical symptoms of
alcohol use and abuse.

Rule Approved: December 18, 1989
Revised: July 2, 1990; Millard Public Schools
November 5, 1990; December 7, 1998; 2007 Omaha, NE

89



Personnel

Drugs, and Alcohol 4173.2

General

The purpose of this rule is to establish standards of conduct for employees as to the use and possession of alcohol
while in the course of their employment or in the discharge of their duties and eliminate the unlawful use or
distribution of alcohol and/or illegal drugs, or the misuse of prescription drugs, on District property. The rule also
applies to acts or conduct which is illegal under federal, state, or local law. All Millard Public School employees are
covered by this rule. Violation of this rule shall result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment.

This Rule shall be administered in accordance with and subject to all applicable District grievance policies and
procedures contained either in collective bargaining agreements or policies and rules of the District, and pursuant to
all constitutional rights, state and federal, to which employees are entitled.

The name of any employee violating this rule shall not be released to the public unless the employee requests an
open hearing with the Board of Education; provided, however, that the Superintendent may notify law enforcement
authorities of any suspected violation of criminal statutes or ordinances.

Definitions

1. Alcohol - any substance subject to the jurisdiction of the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission and
those beverages and alcoholic liquors defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. section 53-103 (Supp. 1989).

2. Illegal drugs - (1) controlled substances as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. sections 28-401, 28-405 (Cum.
Supp. 1988), and 28-419 (Reissue 1985) including but not limited to "uppers", "downers", barbiturates,
marijuana, amphetamines, LSD, heroin, hashish, hallucinogenics or cocaine, and any metabolite or
conjugated form thereof, and (2) any other substance except legal non-prescription drugs or legal
beverages, which alters the mood or behavior and which is not taken for medical purposes under a
prescription by a licensed physician.

3. Distribution - any delivery, sale, transfer, handling, transmitting, administering, giving, or otherwise
making available, alcohol, or illegal drugs.

4. Drug paraphernalia - all equipment, products, and materials of any kind which are used, intended for
use, or designed for use, in manufacturing, injecting, ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing
illegal drugs into the human body.

5. "Look-alike" drugs - any substance which is represented to others to be an illegal drug, or possessed
with the belief or understanding that the substance is an illegal drug.

6. A District employee shall be deemed in possession of alcohol, illegal drugs, look-alike drugs, or drug
paraphernalia if he or she has alcohol, illegal drugs, look-alike drugs, or drug paraphernalia on his or
her person, or under his or her control.

7. E.A.P. - Employee Assistance Program provided by the Millard Public Schools for the benefit of its
employees.

Prohibited Conduct and Penalties

A. Drugs

Employees of the Millard Public Schools shall not:

90



1. Report to work under the influence of any illegal drug.

First offense: Written reprimand and referral to E.A.P.
Second offense: Suspension without pay for twenty days. Referral to E.A.P.
Third offense: Termination of employment.

2. Use or possess any illegal drugs, look-alike drugs or drug paraphernalia while on District property, or
while in the course of the employee's employment or in the discharge of his or her duties.

First offense: Suspension without pay for twenty days. Referral to E.A.P.
Second offense: Termination of employment.

3. Manufacture, or distribute any illegal drug, look-alike drug, or drug paraphernalia while on District
property, at a District- sponsored student event, or at any activity which is substantially related to
educational organizations or activities and where students are present.

First offense: Termination of employment.

B. Alcohol

Employees of the Millard Public Schools shall not:

1. Report to work under the influence of alcohol

First offense: Written reprimand and referral to E.A.P.
Second offense: Suspension without pay for twenty days. Referral to E.A.P.
Third offense: Termination of employment.

2. Use, or possess alcohol or beverages containing alcohol while on District property, or while in the
course of the employee's employment or in the discharge of his or her duties thereunder, at a
District-sponsored student event, or at a student activity in which the District or other school districts
participate.

First offense: Written reprimand and referral to E.A.P.
Second offense: Suspension without pay for twenty days. Referral to E.A.P.
Third offense: Termination of employment.

3. Distribute alcohol or beverages containing alcohol to minors while on District property, at a
District-sponsored student event, or at a student activity in which the District or other school districts
participate.

First offense: Termination of employment.

C. Non-Compliance with Employee Assistance Program

Employees of the Millard School District shall fully comply with and successfully complete the treatment
directed by the District's E.A.P. when the employee is being disciplined for drug and/or alcohol abuse.

First offense: The penalty listed under second offense for whatever prohibited conduct caused referral
to the E.A.P.

Second offense: The penalty listed under third offense for whatever prohibited conduct caused referral to
the E.A.P.

Third offense: Termination of employment.

D. Alternative Disposition

91



The District may impose a lesser or alternative disposition of the offense if the District deems that a lesser or
alternative disposition is in the best interests of the District and the employee.

E. Criminal Convictions

If any District employee is convicted under federal, state, or local law of any crime relating to possession, use,
or distribution of any illegal drugs or distribution or otherwise making alcohol available to minors, the
employee may be suspended without pay for twenty days or his or her employment may be terminated. Any
employee convicted of violating a criminal drug statute must notify the Director of Personnel no later than
five days after the conviction if the criminal violation occurred in the workplace. Failure to timely notify is
grounds for termination of employment.

Education, and Counseling

Employees are encouraged to participate in the District's drug-free awareness programs. Additionally, employees are
encouraged to utilize the E.A.P. services provided by the District in seeking assistance with drug/alcohol problems.
An employee's private use of these services on the employee's own initiative will not jeopardize job security or
promotional opportunity. When such use is private and voluntary, no identifying report of any kind will be made by
the E.A.P. to the District unless the employee so chooses.

Any employee who is disciplined for drug and/or alcohol use and not terminated shall be referred to the District's
E.A.P. for assessment, counseling, treatment and rehabilitation. This shall be a management referral and, as such,
the employee shall be required to execute the necessary releases so that the E.A.P. may inform the District whether
such employee is in compliance with directed treatment.

The district will provide training for its administrators and supervisors to recognize typical symptoms of drug and/or
alcohol use and abuse.

At all times, all District employees shall make every reasonable effort to ensure that any employee who, in the course
of their employment or in the discharge of duties, is under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol does not operate a
motor vehicle. Should an employee refuse to cooperate and attempt to operate a motor vehicle when he/she cannot
operate it safely or lawfully, law enforcement officials shall be immediately notified.

Procedure

Any employee suspected of being in violation of this Rule shall be interviewed by his or her immediate supervisor or
administrator as soon as possible to determine whether the employee is in violation of this Rule or any provisions of
this Rule. If possible, the immediate supervisor or administrator will summon a second supervisor or administrator
to be present at the interview and to assist in the determination.

If the supervisor or administrator determines that the employee is in violation of any provision of this Rule, the
supervisor or administrator shall immediately suspend the employee with pay from his or her duties. The employee
shall be provided a written statement specifically stating why the employee is being suspended. The Notice shall
contain a written acknowledgment of receipt signed by the employee. Should the employee refuse to sign the
acknowledgment of receipt, the refusal shall be so noted on the receipt by the supervisor or administrator.

The supervisor or administrator shall immediately notify the Director of Personnel prior to taking action specified
above. The Director of Personnel shall undertake such additional investigation as may be necessary, and shall
provide the employee with a written statement within two school days specifically stating:

1. What additional action, other than being suspended from duties, if any, will be taken in accordance
with this Rule;

2. The date the employee may return to his or her regular duties; and
3. The employee's due process rights and time limits to appeal.

92



Rule Approved: December 18, 1989 Millard Public Schools
Revised: July 2, 1990; November 5, 1990; December 7, 1998 Omaha, NE

93



New Rule

Human Resources

Drug-Free Workplace: Drugs 4173.3

General

The purpose of this rule is to establish standards of conduct for employees as to the use and possession of
illegal drugs while in the course of their employment or in the discharge of their duties and eliminate the
unlawful use or distribution of illegal drugs, or the misuse of prescription drugs, on District property. The
rule also applies to acts or conduct which is illegal under federal, state, or local law. All Millard Public
School employees are covered by this rule. Violation of this rule shall result in disciplinary action up to and
including termination of employment.

This Rule shall be administered in accordance with and subject to all applicable District grievance policies
and procedures contained either in collective bargaining agreements or policies and rules of the District,
and pursuant to all constitutional rights, state and federal, to which employees are entitled.

The name of any employee violating this rule shall not be released to the public unless the employee
requests an open hearing with the Board of Education; provided, however, that the Superintendent may
notify law enforcement authorities of any suspected violation of criminal statutes or ordinances.

Definitions

1. Illegal drugs - (1) controlled substances as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. sections 28-401, 28-405
(Cum. Supp. 1988), and 28-419 (Reissue 1985) including but not limited to "uppers", "downers",
barbiturates, marijuana, amphetamines, LSD, heroin, hashish, hallucinogenics or cocaine, and any
metabolite or conjugated form thereof, and (2) any other substance except legal non-prescription drugs
or legal beverages, which alters the mood or behavior and which is not taken for medical purposes
under a prescription by a licensed physician.

2. Distribution - any delivery, sale, transfer, handling, transmitting, administering, giving, or
otherwise making available, illegal drugs.

3. Drug paraphernalia - all equipment, products, and materials of any kind which are used, intended
for use, or designed for use, in manufacturing, injecting, ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing
illegal drugs into the human body.

4. “Look-alike" drugs - any substance which is represented to others to be an illegal drug, or
possessed with the belief or understanding that the substance is an illegal drug.

5. "Under the influence" - means for the purpose of this policy that the employee is affected by a
drug substance, or the combination of a drug and alcohol, in any detectable manner. The symptoms of
influence are not confined to those consistent with misbehavior or to obvious impairment of physical
or mental ability such as slurred speech or difficulty in maintaining balance. A determination of
influence can be established by professional opinion, a scientifically valid test and, in some cases, by a
lay person's opinion.

6. A District employee shall be deemed in possession of illegal drugs, look-alike drugs, or drug
paraphernalia if he or she has illegal drugs, look-alike drugs, or drug paraphernalia on his or her
person, or under his or her control.

7. E.A.P. - Employee Assistance Program provided by the Millard Public Schools for the benefit of
its employees.

I. Prohibited Conduct

94



1. Reporting to work, performing job duties or conducting any District business while under the
influence of any illegal drug is strictly prohibited and shall subject the District employee to immediate
discipline actions as hereinafter provided. Conduct of an employee giving rise to such reasonable
suspicion shall be reported to the employee's immediate supervisor and documented in a report.

2. Using, possessing or distributing any illegal drug while on District property, performing job
duties, or while in the course of the employees' employment, at a District-sponsored student event, or
at a student activity in which the District or other school districts participate, is strictly prohibited and
shall subject the District employee to immediate discipline actions as hereinafter provided.

II. Procedure

Any employee suspected of being in violation of this Rule shall be interviewed by his or her immediate
supervisor or administrator as soon as possible to determine whether the employee is in violation of this
Rule or any provisions of this Rule. If necessary, the immediate supervisor or administrator will summon a
second supervisor or administrator to be present at the interview and to assist in the determination.

If the supervisor or administrator determines that the employee is in violation of any provision of this Rule,
the supervisor or administrator shall immediately notify the Associate Superintendent for Human
Resources, or Designee, who shall interview the employee. If the Associate Superintendent of Human
Resources, or Designee, has a reasonable suspicion that the employee is in violation of this rule, he/she
shall immediately suspend the employee with pay from his or her duties, and if the employee is being
suspected of being under the influence of illegal drugs, direct the employees to tested for illegal drugs.
Employees are required to submit to drug testing upon a reasonable suspicion of a violation of this rule.
The employee shall be advised of the required drug testing by the Associate Superintendent for Human
Resources, or Designee, and be transported to a location for the administration of such required test.

The results of the drug test may be used to provide the employee an opportunity to exonerate
himself/herself. If the employee tests negative for drugs, the employee will not be subject to disciplinary
measures related to violation of the District's drug policy and shall be returned to duty. Refusal to submit to
a drug test may be offered in evidence in any grievance proceeding related to the disciplinary action for
violation of the District's Drug Policy. The employee may be subject to disciplinary action based on
violations of other District policies and/or rules.

The employee shall, within a reasonable time, be provided a written statement specifically stating why the
employee was suspended. The Notice shall contain a written acknowledgment of receipt signed by the
employee. Should the employee refuse to sign the acknowledgment of receipt, the refusal shall be so noted
on the receipt by the supervisor or administrator.

The Associate Superintendent/Designee shall undertake such additional investigation as may be necessary,
and shall provide the employee with a written statement within a reasonable time specifically stating:

1. What additional action, other than being suspended from duties, if any, will be taken in accordance
with this Rule; and,

2. The date or the conditions under which the employee may return to his or her regular duties; and,

3. The employee's due process rights and time limits to appeal by reference to the Distirct’s
Grievance procedures or, if applicable, the provision of a Collective Bargaining Agreement.

At all times, each District employee shall make every reasonable effort to ensure that any employee who, in
the course of their employment or in the discharge of duties, is under the influence of drugs does not
operate a motor vehicle. Should an employee refuse to cooperate and attempt to operate a motor vehicle
when he/she cannot operate it safely or lawfully, law enforcement officials shall be immediately notified.

III. Violations and Penalties

95



Employees of the Millard Public Schools shall not:

1. Report to work under the influence of illegal drugs.

First offense: Employee will be subject to a suspension without pay for a minimum of twenty days and
a maximum of termination of employment. Mandatory referral to E.A.P. in the event the
employee is not terminated.

Second offense: Employee shall be terminated from employment.

2. Use, possess, manufacture, or distribute illegal drugs, look-alike drugs or drug paraphernalia while on
District property, or while in the course of the employee's employment or in the discharge of his or her
duties thereunder, at a District-sponsored student event, or at a student activity in which the District or
other school districts participate.

First offense: Employee shall be terminated from employment.

IV. Non-Compliance with Employee Assistance Program

Employees of the Millard School District shall fully comply with and successfully complete the treatment
directed by the District's E.A.P. when the employee is being disciplined for violation of this rule. Failure to
do so shall result in termination of employment.

V. Alternative Disposition

The District may impose a lesser or alternative disposition of the offense if the District deems that a lesser
or alternative disposition is in the best interests of the District and the employee.

VI. Criminal Convictions

If a District employee is convicted of any crime relating to the possession, use, or distribution of any illegal
drug, the employee may be suspended without pay for up to twenty days or his or her employment may be
terminated. An employee convicted of violating a criminal drug statute must notify the Associate
Superintendent of Human Resources or designee no later than five days after the conviction. Failure to
timely notify is grounds for termination of employment.

VII. Education and Counseling

Employees are encouraged to participate in the District's substance abuse programs. Additionally,
employees are encouraged to utilize the E.A.P. services provided by the District in seeking assistance with
drug problems. An employee's private use of these services on the employee's own initiative will not
jeopardize job security or promotional opportunity. When such use is private and voluntary, no identifying
report of any kind will be made by the E.A.P. to the District unless the employee so chooses.

Any employee who is disciplined for drug use and not terminated shall be referred to the District's E.A.P.
for assessment, counseling, treatment and rehabilitation. This shall be a management referral and, as such,
the employee shall be required to execute the necessary releases so that the E.A.P. may inform the District
whether such employee is in compliance with directed treatment.

The district will provide training for its administrators and supervisors to recognize typical symptoms of
drug use and abuse.

Rule Approve: December 18, 1989
Revised: July 2, 1990; Millard Public Schools
November 5, 1990; December 7, 1998; 2007 Omaha, NE

96



Enclosure
January 22, 2007

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Amendment to Exempt School: Requests for Programs,
Services or Materials, Rule 6675.1

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Activities and Athletics

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Policy 6675: Curriculum, Instruction, and
Assessment: Exempt School, Rule 6675.1: Exempt
School: Exempt Schools: Requests for Programs,
Services or Materials

The amendments would continue to allow
nonpublic school students access to educational and
co-curricular activities, but would not allow exempt
students access to extracurricular activities.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval __X__

BACKGROUND: The rule is being recommended for approval after review and
revision. The specific policy and rule are:

Policy 6680, Rule 6680.1 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment, Exempt School,
Exempt Schools: Requests for Programs, Services or Materials

The rule as amended would continue to allow exempt school students access to co-
curricular programs. Because co-curricular programs assign a grade for many of their
activities that occur after school, one may correct state that any child has a right to
participate in co-curricular activities. Co-curricular programs have included the
performing arts, debate, forensics, journalism, yearbook and many other programs that
involve events that occur after the academic day has concluded. However, participation in
interscholastic athletics has been viewed as a privileged activity rather than as programs
in which all students have a right to participate.

97



TIME LINE: Immediate

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Craig Whaley, Director of Activities
Dr. Martha Bruckner, Associate Superintendent of Educational
Services

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

98



There are several reasons why it is not necessary to allow exempt school students access
to extracurricular athletic programs in the district. These reasons include:

1. By limiting the participation in district athletic programs to those who are
currently enrolled in our schools, it is easier to maintain consistency in the
administration of those programs. The administration would include such items as
the validity and verification of eligibility standards to participate in athletics as
well as the validity and verification of attendance during the school day.

2. This policy, as amended, would be consistent with all activities that are subject to
the by-laws of the Nebraska School Activities Association regarding the
eligibility of exempt school students in the high school athletic programs.

3. This policy, as amended, would remove the potential conflict between allowing
exempt school student participation on a team versus allowing that same student
to deny an opportunity to a student who attends our school. This conflict
potentially could occur when decisions are made by coaches as to which team
level athletes will compete. While the teams at the middle school level do not cut
students, decisions are made as to what team level (the A team, B team, C team
concept) each student will participate.

4. There is no federal or state law that mandates public schools to allow exempt
school student participation in public school athletic programs at the middle
school level.

5. It is much more difficult to apply our curtailment policies and consequences to
those students who are not enrolled in our schools.

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:

1. Leave the rule as currently worded.

2. Amend the rule so that participation in co-curricular activities and extracurricular
activities is denied to exempt school students until the parents of these students
choose to enroll their children into the Millard Public Schools.

RECOMMENDATIONS: After review by the Board of Education, approval of Rule
6680.1 as amended.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Adoption of this rule established the
principle that participation in our middle school athletic programs is for those students who are
enrolled at our middle schools. Rejection of this rule will allow the participation in our middle
school athletic programs by those who do not attend our middle schools.

99



Category: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Policy: Exempt School 6675

The Millard Public Schools recognizes the rights of parents and guardians to educate their children and wards in an exempt
school, in accordance with state law and regulations. The Superintendent shall establish such guidelines and procedures to
work cooperatively with such Exempt Schools and Exempt School Students as may be required by state and federal law.

Legal References: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-318, 79-1601
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 12
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 13

Related Policy and Rules: 5130 , 6675.1 , 6675.2

Date of Adoption: February 21, 2000

Date of Revision: August 4, 2003
Millard Public Schools

Omaha, NE

100

http://www.mpsomaha.org/mps/index.cfm?action=309&id=447&pid=287
http://www.mpsomaha.org/mps/index.cfm?action=309&id=447&pid=454
http://www.mpsomaha.org/mps/index.cfm?action=309&id=447&pid=455


Category: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Policy: Exempt School
Rule: Exempt Schools: Requests for Programs, Services or Materials 6675.1

I. General Statement. Nebraska law provides parents and guardians the right to educate their children and wards in
alternative schools which are exempt from state approval or state accreditation requirements.

II. Definitions.

A. Exempt School shall mean any private, parochial, denominational or home school which has elected not
to meet approval and/or accreditation requirements pursuant to state law and regulations of the Nebraska
Department of Education.

B. Exempt School Student shall mean any resident student of school age who has not graduated or
received a G.E.D. diploma and who is attending an Exempt School.

C. Assigned School shall mean the District school where the Exempt School Student would have attended
and received educational instruction if the student had officially enrolled pursuant to the District’s
enrollment policies and rules.

D. Programs shall mean the educational curriculum, co-curricular activities, and extracurricular school-
sponsored clubs and activities which are available for students who are enrolled in the District. , but
excluding all interscholastic athletics and activities which are under the jurisdiction of the Nebraska
School Activities Association. This definition shall not include any interscholastic athletics or activities as
well as any activity or interscholastic athletics under the jurisdiction of the Nebraska School Activities
Association.

III. Cooperation with Exempt Schools.

The District shall cooperate with the education of Exempt School Students according to the state and federal law
and District policies and rules. In cooperating in the educational process of Exempt School Students the District
shall:

A. Provide special education services to qualified Exempt School Students pursuant to District policies and
rules and state and federal laws and regulations. Special education and related services will be provided
at the assigned District school that is closest to the eligible student’s Exempt School. Services will be
available during the hours that public school students attend school.

B. Not allow any Exempt School Student to participate in any interscholastic athletics or activities as well as
any activity or interscholastic athletics which are under the jurisdiction of the Nebraska School Activities
Association.

C. Not provide any ELL, Title I, homebound instruction or other remedial services to Exempt School
Students except as may be required by law.

D. Not provide any textbooks, teacher’s edition textbooks, ancillary textbook materials, consumable
material, library or media materials, or other resources to Exempt School Students or Exempt Schools.

IV. Requests for Participation.

A. All requests for participation in District programs shall be referred to the Superintendent or designee for
consideration and approval or denial. The Superintendent or designee in considering and evaluating the
request shall consider the following issues:

101



1. Whether the school is closed to option enrollment or in-district transfers;

2. The availability of the requested program at the assigned school;

3. Whether the school environment or educational process will be disrupted;

4. Whether there is space available and a specified time can be assigned so as to minimize any
conflicts or disruption of the education process;

5. Whether the Exempt School Student meets academic eligibility requirements or course
enrollment prerequisites for participation;

6. Whether the requested program is appropriate for the knowledge level, intellectual maturity,
competence, and age of the Exempt School Student; and

7. Whether the requested program is part of an integrated program which cannot be isolated so as
to allow participation in the requested program.

B. An Exempt School Student shall be required to be officially enrolled and counted proportionately towards
the District’s ADA/ADM if such Student requests participate in the District’s programs

C. Exempt School Students who participate in District programs shall be subject to all District and school
policies and rules, including, but not limited to, District and school policies and rules regarding student
conduct, discipline, attendance, student fees, student provided materials, equipment and attire,
insurance, proof of age and identity, physical examination, and immunizations.

D. Any Exempt School Student requesting participation in more than fifty percent (50%) of District classes
on a daily or weekly basis, must enroll as a full-time District student and be subject to all requirements of
all other full-time students of the District

E. Exempt School Students may participate in those co-curricular activities and extracurricular school
sponsored clubs and activities which are available to students who are enrolled in the District with the
exception of any interscholastic athletics or activities as well as any activity or interscholastic athletics
under the jurisdiction of the Nebraska School Activities Association. not subject to eligibility rules of the
Nebraska School Activities Association, subject to approval as provided in this rule.

Date of Adoption: February 21, 2000

Date of Revision: July 31, 2000; August 4, 2003; January 22, 2007
Millard Public Schools

Omaha, NE

102



Enclosure
January 22, 2007

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Amendment to Nonpublic Schools: Requests for Programs,
Services, Rule 6680.1

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Activities and Athletics

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Policy 6680: Curriculum, Instruction, and
Assessment: Nonpublic Schools, Rule 6680.1:
Nonpublic Schools: Nonpublic Schools: Requests
for Programs, Services

The amendments would continue to allow
nonpublic school students access to educational and
co-curricular activities, but would not allow
nonpublic school students access to extracurricular
activities.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval __X__

BACKGROUND: The rule is being recommended for approval after review and
revision. The specific policy and rule are:

Policy 6680, Rule 6680.1 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment, Nonpublic
Schools, Nonpublic Schools: Requests for Programs, Services

The rule as amended would continue to allow nonpublic school students access to
co-curricular programs. Because co-curricular programs assign a grade for many of their
activities that occur after school, one may correct state that any child has a right to
participate in co-curricular activities. Co-curricular programs have included the
performing arts, debate, forensics, journalism, yearbook and many other programs that
involve events that occur after the academic day has concluded. However, participation in
interscholastic athletics has been viewed as a privileged activity rather than as programs
in which all students have a right to participate.

103



There are several reasons why it is not necessary to allow nonpublic school students
access to extracurricular athletic programs in the district. These reasons include:

1. By limiting the participation in district athletic programs to those who are
currently enrolled in our schools, it is easier to maintain consistency in the
administration of those programs. The administration would include such items as
the validity and verification of eligibility standards to participate in athletics as
well as the validity and verification of attendance during the school day.

2. This policy, as amended, would be consistent with all activities that are subject to
the by-laws of the Nebraska School Activities Association regarding the
eligibility of nonpublic school students in the high school athletic programs.

3. This policy, as amended, would remove the potential conflict between allowing
nonpublic school student participation on a team versus allowing that same
student to deny an opportunity to a student who attends our school. This conflict
potentially could occur when decisions are made by coaches as to which team
level athletes will compete. While the teams at the middle school level do not cut
students, decisions are made as to what team level (the A team, B team, C team
concept) each student will participate.

4. Many, if not all, of the nonpublic schools at the middle school level (other than
home school programs) offer athletic programs.

5. There is no federal or state law that mandates public schools to allow nonpublic
school participation in public school athletic programs at the middle school level.

6. It is much more difficult to apply our curtailment policies and consequences to
those students who are not enrolled in our schools.

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:

1. Leave the rule as currently worded.

2. Amend the rule so that participation in co-curricular activities and extracurricular
activities is denied to nonpublic school students until the parents of these students
choose to enroll their children into the Millard Public Schools.

RECOMMENDATIONS: After review by the Board of Education, approval of Rule
6680.1 as amended.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

104



IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Adoption of this rule established the
principle that participation in our middle school athletic programs is for those students who are
enrolled at our middle schools. Rejection of this rule will allow the participation in our middle
school athletic programs by those who do not attend our middle schools.

TIME LINE: Immediate

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Craig Whaley, Director of Activities
Dr. Martha Bruckner, Associate Superintendent of Educational
Services

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

105



Category: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Policy: Nonpublic Schools 6680

The Millard Public Schools recognizes the rights of parents and guardians to educate their children and wards in a nonpublic
school, in accordance with state law and regulations. The superintendent shall establish such guidelines and procedures to
work cooperatively with such nonpublic schools and nonpublic school students as may be required by state and federal law.

Legal References: Neb. Rev. Stat. 79-318 and 79-1601
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 14
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 51

Related Policy and Rule: 5130 , 6680.1

Date of Adoption: August 4, 2003
Millard Public Schools

Omaha, NE

106

http://www.mpsomaha.org/mps/index.cfm?action=309&id=447&pid=287
http://www.mpsomaha.org/mps/index.cfm?action=309&id=447&pid=457


Category: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Policy: Nonpublic Schools
Rule: Nonpublic Schools: Requests for Programs, Services 6680.1

I. General Statement. Nebraska law provides parents and guardians the right to educate their children and wards in
Nonpublic Schools that meet state approval or state accreditation requirements.

II. Definitions

A. A. Nonpublic School shall mean any private, parochial, or denominational school which has met approval
and/or accreditation requirements pursuant to state law and regulations of the Nebraska Department of
Education.

B. Nonpublic School Student shall mean any resident student of school age who has not graduated or
received a G. E. D. diploma and who is attending a an Nonpublic School.

C. Assigned School shall mean the District school where the Nonpublic School Student would have
attended and received educational instruction if the student had officially enrolled pursuant to the
District’s enrollment policies and rules.

D. Programs shall mean the educational curriculum, co-curricular activities, and extracurricular school
sponsored clubs and activities which are available for students who are enrolled in the District. , but
excluding all interscholastic athletics and activities which are under the jurisdiction of the Nebraska
School Activities Association. This definition shall not include any interscholastic athletics or activities as
well as any activity or interscholastic athletics under the jurisdiction of the Nebraska School Activities
Association.

III. Cooperation with Nonpublic Schools:

The District shall cooperate with the education of Nonpublic School Students according to the state and federal law, and
District policies and rules. In cooperating in the educational process of Nonpublic School Students the District shall:

A. Provide special education services to qualified Nonpublic School Students pursuant to District policies and rules and state
and federal laws and regulations. Special education and related services will be provided at the District school that is linked
to the eligible student’s Nonpublic School or the eligible student’s assigned school. Services will be available during the
hours that public school students attend school.

B. Not allow any Nonpublic School Student to participate in any interscholastic athletics or activities as well as any activity or
interscholastic athletics which are under the jurisdiction of the Nebraska School Activities Association.

C. Not provide any ELL, Title I, or other remedial services to Nonpublic School Students except as may be required by law.

D. Provide textbooks for use by Nonpublic School Students in accordance with District Policy 6295 and Rule 6295.1.

E. Provide homebound instruction in accordance with District Rule 6670.1

IV. Request for Participation.

A. All requests for participation in District programs shall be referred to the Superintendent or designee for consideration and
approval or denial. The Superintendent or designee in considering and evaluating the request shall consider the following
issues:

1. Whether the school is closed to option enrollment or in-district transfers;

2. The availability of the requested program at the assigned school;

3. Whether the school environment or educational process will be disrupted;

107



4. Whether there is space available and a specified time can be assigned so as to minimize any conflicts or disruption of the
education process;

5. Whether the Nonpublic School Student meets academic eligibility requirements or course enrollment prerequisites for
participation;

6. Whether the requested program is appropriate for the knowledge level, intellectual maturity, competence, and age of the
Nonpublic School Student; and

7. Whether the requested program is part of an integrated program which cannot be isolated so as to allow participation in
the requested program.

B. A Nonpublic School Student shall be required to be officially enrolled and counted proportionately towards the District’s
ADA/ADM if such Student requests to participate in the District’s program.

C. Nonpublic School Students who participate in District programs shall be subject to all District and school policies and
rules, including, but not limited to, District and school policies and rules regarding student conduct, discipline, attendance,
student fees, student provided materials, equipment and attire, insurance, proof of age and identify, physical examination,
and immunizations.

D. Any Nonpublic School Student requesting participation in more than fifty percent (50%) of District classes on a daily or
weekly basis must enroll as a full time District student and be subject to all requirements of all other full time students of the
District.

E. Nonpublic School Students may participate in those co-curricular activities and extracurricular school sponsored clubs
and activities which are available to students who are enrolled in the District with the exception of any interscholastic
athletics or activities as well as any activity or interscholastic athletics under the jurisdiction of the Nebraska School Activities
Association. are not subject to eligibility rules of the Nebraska School Activities Association, subject to approval as provided
in this Rule.

Date of Adoption: August 4, 2003

Date of Revision: January 22, 2007 Millard Public Schools
Omaha, NE

108



109



110



111



112



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Audit Management Letter

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Audit Management Letter – The Letter to Management which accompanies the

annual audit report.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: At the time the FYE06 financial audit was presented to the board (in December),
the auditors had not yet finalized the Letter to Management. This letter is usually
presented at the same time as the audit itself.

A copy of management’s response to the recommendations contained in the Letter
to Management is attached (along with a copy of the Letter).

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: (No action is required.)

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: _________Keith Lutz_________________

113



MEMORANDUM

To: All
From: Ken Fossen, Assoc. Supt. Gen. Admin.
Re: Response to FYE06 Management Letter
Date: January 17, 2007

The auditing firm of Orizon CPAs LLC conducted the audit of the financial records of
the Millard Public Schools for the fiscal year ending 2006. Associated with its audit
report, Orizon issued a Management Letter (See attached, MEMORANDUM I).

Management’s response to the matters raised in the Management Letter are as follows:

1. Delays in Reconciliation of Accounts

Management agrees. A temporary accountant has already been secured to assist
with the monthly reconciliations of the bank statements related to food service.

2. Deposit Delay

The delay in the depositing of one or more checks related to the Millard Public
Schools Foundation was researched. The problem appears to have been related to
a backlog of work in the business office. In the future, when backlogs occur, the
procedure will be to deposit the checks into a general account. When business
office personnel get caught up, the appropriate journal entries will be made to
move the deposits from the general account into the appropriate account(s).

3. Policy Regarding Credit Risk

During the past year, the District adopted a policy regarding appropriate
investments. The policy adopted was modeled after the policy of the Lincoln
Public Schools. It is the opinion of the auditors that this policy does not address
all of the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Since the District desires to be in compliance with these accounting standards, it
will further revise its policies. In order to accomplish this, the District will rely
upon its auditors to provide sample policies from similarly-sized public schools
that fully comply with such standards.

4. Write-Off Old Checks

The District has some old checks that need to be “written-off” and the proceeds
sent to the State as unclaimed property. This will be done. The District intends to
open an additional payroll account as recommended by the auditors.

114



5. Segregation of Duties:

The issue of segregation of duties (especially at elementary schools where there is
only one secretary) is a repeat from multiple prior years. As noted in prior years,
in order to satisfactorily address this issue, the District would need to commit
more personnel time and expense to the accounting function of the schools.
Although the issue has been discussed, management is of the opinion that the
additional resources required would be better utilized in providing educational
services rather than accounting services.

115



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Upchurch (Elementary #25) Construction Contract

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Award of Upchurch (Elementary #25) Construction Contract – The award of the

construction contract for Elementary #25 near 168th & Giles.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: The bids for Elementary #25 were received last week. A copy of the architect’s
recommendation letter and the bid tab are attached. The building is a one-story
building similar to Fire Ridge in Elkhorn.

The bids came in over budget by about 4%. After considerable discussion, the
construction committee decided to recommend that the bids be accepted with the
inclusion of Alternates 1 (playground equipment), 2 (larger storm shelter area), and
6 (higher grade carpet). These alternates would make Elementary #25 comparable
to Elementaries #21, #22, #23, and #24.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: Various alternates could be accepted or rejected. Also, the bids could all be

rejected and the project redesigned and rebid at a later date.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the construction of Elementary #25
(Upchurch Elementary School) be awarded to Upland Construction Company in
the amount of $6,917,000 with such amount including Alternates CC-1, CC-2, and
CC-6 and that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized
and directed to sign any and all contracts related to such project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

116



117



118



119



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Sandoz Pre-Purchase Items

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Sandoz Pre-Purchase Items – The awarding of the contract

for items (e.g., HVAC roof top units) necessary for the summer roofing project
planned for Sandoz Elementary School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: Sandoz Elementary School is scheduled for a re-roofing this summer. As part of
the project, the District plans to replace the old HVAC units on the roof. Since
there is a long lead time to get these units delivered, the District is bidding the
units now so that they will be delivered in time for the roofing project. The
general contract for the roofing project will be responsible for the installation.

The bids for the pre-purchase items (e.g., HVAC roof top units) will be received
on January 17th. Information regarding the results of the bidding (and the related
recommendations) will be forwarded to the board prior to the meeting.

Update on 1/19/07: The bids were received on January 17th. Two bids were
received:

Mechanical Sales, Inc. $342,490
Carrier Corporation $374,783

Because of the following language attached to the Mechanical Sales, Inc.
proposal, their bid was rejected for not complying with bid specifications:

“Unfortunately, Mechanical Sales cannot accept terms
that include $2000/day liquidated damages.”

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the pre-purchase items for the Sandoz
Elementary summer construction project be awarded to Carrier Corporation in the
amount of $ 374,783 and that the associate superintendent for general
administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related
to such project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

120



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Elementary School Principal, Ackerman Elementary School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised on CareerLink and in Millard’s job
postings. Twenty-one applications were received (eleven from outside
the district and ten from within the district.) The applications were
reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste. Three applicants from within the district
and three applicants from outside the district were selected to interview
for the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr.
Keith Lutz, Dr. Martha Bruckner, Carol Newton, Angelo Passarelli,
Jeanine Beaudin, Dr. Jim Sutfin, Tara Fabian (Teacher), Jackie Clarke
(Teacher), and Celeste Montoya (Parent). I am recommending the
following individual for the position:

Melissa Gilbert Recommended for the Elementary School Principal at Ackerman
Elementary School. Melissa is currently the principal at Johnson
Elementary School in Cedar Rapids, IA. She has been in this position
since 2003. Prior to that she was the Curriculum/School Improvement
Consultant at Grant Wood Area Education Agency in Cedar Rapids, IA
from 2001/2003, Staff Development Consultant at Educational Service
Unit, ESU16, in Ogallala/North Platte, NE in 2000/2001, first and
second grade teacher at Sutherland Public Schools, Sutherland, NE
from 1998/2000, School to Work Grant Coordinator at Educational
Service Unit, ESU 16, North Platte, NE in 1997/1998, and
Elementary/Reading Recovery teacher at Kearney Public Schools,
Kearney, NE from 1992/1997.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from University of Nebraska at Kearney in 1991, a
Masters from University of Nebraska at Kearney in 2001.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

121



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Elementary School Principal, Cather Elementary School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised on CareerLink and in Millard’s job
postings. Twenty-one applications were received (eleven from outside
the district and ten from within the district.) The applications were
reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste. Three applicants from within the district
and three applicants from outside the district were selected to interview
for the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr.
Keith Lutz, Dr. Martha Bruckner, Carol Newton, Angelo Passarelli,
Jeanine Beaudin, Dr. Jim Sutfin, Kathy Hasselbalch (Teacher), Bonnie
Skaff (Teacher), Merry Jensen (Parent), and Anne Neill (Parent). I am
recommending the following individual for the position:

Paula Peal Recommended for the Elementary School Principal at Cather
Elementary School. Paula is currently the assistant principal at
Ackerman Elementary. She was the assistant principal at Neihardt
Elementary School from 2004/2006. Prior to that Paula was the Tech
Leader at Willowdale from 1996/2004 and the READ
teacher/Instructional Facilitator at Norris Elementary from 1994/1996.
She also taught fourth grade at Montclair from 1987/1994 and at
Abbott from 1981/1987. Paula taught sixth grade at Cody for the
1980/81 school year.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from St. Mary in 1980, a Masters from Wesleyan in
1989, and a second Masters in Education Administration in 2003.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

122



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Elementary School Principal, Cody Elementary School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised on CareerLink and in Millard’s job
postings. Twenty-one applications were received (eleven from outside
the district and ten from within the district.) The applications were
reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste. Three applicants from within the district
and three applicants from outside the district were selected to interview
for the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr.
Keith Lutz, Dr. Martha Bruckner, Carol Newton, Angelo Passarelli,
Jeanine Beaudin, and Dr. Jim Sutfin. Fifteen staff members and
parents at Cody met with one candidate (Matt) on January 11 for the
purpose of asking questions of him and to get to know him. I am
recommending the following individual for the position:

Matthew Dominy Recommended for the Elementary School Principal at Cody
Elementary School. Matthew is currently the principal at Desert View
Elementary in Page, AZ. He was the Assistant Principal in 2004/05
and the Principal Intern during the spring of 2004. Matthew taught
fourth grade at Lakeview Elementary in Page, AZ from 2000/2004.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from Doane College in 2000, a Masters from
Northern Arizona University in 2003.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

123



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Elementary School Principal, Ezra Elementary School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised on CareerLink and in Millard’s job
postings. Twenty-one applications were received (eleven from outside
the district and ten from within the district.) The applications were
reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste. Three applicants from within the district
and three applicants from outside the district were selected to interview
for the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr.
Keith Lutz, Dr. Martha Bruckner, Carol Newton, Angelo Passarelli,
Jeanine Beaudin, Dr. Jim Sutfin, Jill Clanton (Teacher), Helen Lykke-
Wisler (Teacher), and Stephanie Sacco (Parent). I am recommending
the following individual for the position:

Carrie Novotny-Buss Recommended for the Elementary School Principal at Ezra Elementary
School. Carrie is currently the assistant principal at Beadle Middle
School and Wheeler Elementary. She was the assistant principal at
Ackerman Elementary from 2004/2006. Prior to that she taught fifth
grade at Morton for the 2003/04 school year, fourth grade at Morton
from 2001/2003, Special Ed at Rohwer in 1999/2001, and Resource at
Neihardt from 1996/1999.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from College of St. Mary in 1996, and a Masters
from University of Nebraska Omaha in 2005.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

124



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Elementary School Principal, Neihardt Elementary School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised on CareerLink and in Millard’s job
postings. Twenty-one applications were received (eleven from outside
the district and ten from within the district.) The applications were
reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste. Three applicants from within the district
and three applicants from outside the district were selected to interview
for the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr.
Keith Lutz, Dr. Martha Bruckner, Carol Newton, Angelo Passarelli,
Jeanine Beaudin, Dr. Jim Sutfin, Tara Jurena Carmichael (Teacher),
Linda Ward (Teacher). I am recommending the following individual
for the position:

Colleen Beckwith Recommended for the Elementary School Principal at Neihardt
Elementary School. Colleen is currently the interim principal at
Neihardt Elementary. Colleen was the assistant principal at Neihardt
first semester of the 2006/07 school year. She was the assistant
principal at Beadle Middle School and Wheeler for the 2005/06 school
year and at Rohwer Elementary for the 2004/05 school year. Prior to
that Colleen was the Instructional Facilitator at Rohwer for the 2003/04
school year and taught first grade at Rohwer from 1999 to 2003. She
also taught fourth grade at Aldrich for the 1998/99 school year.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from the University of Nebraska Omaha in 1997,
and a Masters from the University of Nebraska Omaha in 2001.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

125



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: High School Principal, Millard North High School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised on CareerLink and in Millard’s job
postings. Eight applications were received (five from outside the
district and three from within the district). The applications were
reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste and Dr. Lutz. Three applicants from
within the district and three applicants outside the district were selected
to interview for the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby
Eltiste, Dr. Keith Lutz, Dr. Judy Porter, Dr. Martha Bruckner, Jon
Lopez, Susan Marlatt, Cindy Nabity (Teacher), Tina Gradel (Teacher),
Julie Kemp (Teacher), Julia Kolander (Teacher), John Kirke (Teacher),
Jodi Therkelsen (Teacher), Sarah Morgan (Teacher), Larry Wooster
(Parent), Dr. Lannie Weak (Parent), Sarah Pierson (Student), Greg
Fonda (Student). I am recommending the following individual for the
position:

Brian Begley Recommended for the High School Principal at Millard North High
School. Brian is currently the Principal at Russell Middle School.
Prior to this position, he was the Assistant Principal at Kiewit Middle
School from 1999/2005. Brian also taught Language Arts at North
High School from 1992/1999.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from the University of Nebraska at Omaha in 1992
and Masters from the University of Nebraska at Omaha in 1997.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

126



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Re-Assignment

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Elementary Principal, Upchurch Elementary

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The interview process to select the principal for the new Upchurch
Elementary has been completed. Upchurch is scheduled to open in Fall
2008. Internal candidates only were interviewed by Dr. Lutz and Dr.
Eltiste. I am recommending the following individual for the position.

Susan Anglemyer She is currently Principal at Sandoz Elementary School. She has been
in this position since 1998. Prior to this Mrs. Anglemyer was Assistant
Principal and Instructional Facilitator at Cather Elementary and
Cottonwood Elementary, Grade 1/2 at Cody Elementary, and sixth
grade at Andersen Middle. Prior to joining Millard Public Schools,
Mrs. Anglemyer taught fourth and fifth grade in Hays, KS from 1991-
1994; first and second grade in Utica, Kansas 1988-1991; and second
grade for the Denver Public Schools 1985-1988.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from Kansas State in 1985, Masters from Fort Hays
State in 1991.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

127



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) New Hire; (2) Amended Contract; (3)
Leave of Absence; and (4) Resignation

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

128



January 22, 2007

AMENDMENT TO CONTINUING CONTRACTS

Recommend: amendment to the following contracts:

1. Stephanie Schade – Reteaching teacher at Neihardt Elementary School. Amend
contract from 50% to 100% beginning January 3, 2007.

129



January 22, 2007

LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS

Recommend: the following extended leave without pay requests be approved:

1. Marsha Davidson – Language Arts teacher at West High School. She is requesting
her Leave of Absence be extended for the remainder of the 2006/07 school year for
health reasons.

130



January 22, 2007

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. April Jensen – Third grade teacher at Reeder Elementary School. Resigned effective
January 10, 2007 for health reasons.

2. Elizabeth McNeill – Fourth grade teacher at Bryan Elementary School. Resigned
effective January 5, 2007 for personal reasons.

3. Kelly Berg – Fourth grade teacher at Abbott Elementary School. Resigned effective
January 31, 2007 due to relocation.

131



January 22, 2007

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teachers be hired:

1. Ryan McMahon – BA – University of Nebraska at Kearney. World Language teacher at
Kiewit Middle School for the 2007/08 school year. Previous Exp: Omaha Public
Schools, (2006/2007).

2. Juan Aguirre – BA – Bethel College, Kansas. World Language teacher at West High
School for the 2007/08 school year. Previous Exp: USD 48, Great Bend, KS
(1999/2005); Arlington Public Schools, Arlington, NE (2005/2007)

3. Jennifer Stephenson – BA – Nebraska Wesleyan, Lincoln, NE. Math teacher at South
High School for the 2007/08 school year.

4. Melody Hardage – MA – MidAmerica Nazarene University, Olathe, KS. Fourth grade
teacher at Bryan Elementary School beginning January 29, 2007. Previous Exp:
Hawthorne Elementary School, Kansas City, KS (1992/1995).

The following individuals were employed by Millard Public Schools for the 2006/2007
school year on a short-term contract. They are now being offered a regular contract for the
2007/2008 school year.

1. Jodi Stroburg – Sixth grade teacher at Beadle Middle School.

2. Zachary Ward – Language Arts teacher at Russell Middle School.

3. Brett Metzger – Sixth grade teacher at Central Middle School.

132



January 22, 2007

Voluntary Separation

Recommend: The following qualified candidates be approved to participate in the District’s Voluntary
Separation Program (The Board previously approved 48 applications for 2007):

Years of
Name Position School Credited Service

1. Kathy Goodall SPED Resource Teacher North High 15

2. Nick Meysenburg Principal Cody Elementary 28

3. Glenn Millerd School Psychologist CSMI 27

133



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Construction Report

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Construction Report – A report from the District’s construction management firm

with regard to the progress on projects related to the 2005 bond issue.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: The District has engaged the services of Magnum Resources, Inc. (MRI) to act as
the construction manager for the District’s construction/renovation projects related
to the 2005 bond issue.

Don Mohlman (MRI) will be present at the meeting to present the construction
update (see attached) and to answer questions.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Don Mohlman (MRI) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General
Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

134



January 2007
Vol. 20

135



Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 20
January 2007

Index

I. Executive Summary Page 1

 Administrative Overview

II. Project Status Report Page 2 - 9

 South High School
 North High School
 West High School
 Buell Stadium
 Non-traditional High School
 Beadle Middle School
 Reagan Elementary #24
 Upchurch Elementary #25
 Ackerman Elementary

III. Master Control Budget Page 10 –11

 Control Budget Summary
 Detailed Project Summary

IV. Master Control Schedule Page 12

 Project Milestone Schedule

136



1

Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 20
January 2007

Executive Summary

Administrative Overview

 Continuation of weekly meetings with the Bond Committee consisting of Ken Fossen, Mark
Feldhausen, Ed Rockwell, Kim Thompson, Bob Snowden, Don Mohlman, Randy Schroeder,
and Ron Hager. Weekly Owner-Architect-Contractor meetings are taking place at all active
projects.

 Current projects in progress include North HS, South HS, West HS, Beadle MS, Reagan
Elementary #24, and Upchurch Elementary #25.

 West HS (classroom addition) and Beadle MS are now enclosed.

 Students occupied the North HS cafeteria and classroom addition on January 3, 2007. The
science classrooms were occupied on January 10th.

 Upchurch Elementary #25 was bid on January 9, 2007. Although the base bid and
recommended alternates are $398,000 above the original budget; the eight bids received were
very competitive with only a 0.3% difference between the first and second bidders. As
previously reported, the original project was a site adaptation from Elkhorn Public Schools;
however, several significant modifications were made by MPS to include the following;

1. Secured entrance (1,500 sf) similar to Reeder, and Reagan
2. Kitchen expansion (300 sf)
3. Additional restroom at Sped area
4. Mechanical dehumidification
5. Air conditioning at gymnasium
6. Loading dock
7. Generator (back-up power for life safety)
8. Upgraded roofing
9. Upgraded carpet (recommended alternate bid)
10. Second storm shelter (recommended alternate bid)
11. Playground equipment was also bid as an alternate rather than purchased separately

by the District.

The overall bond budget contingency (approximately $4m) supports the recommendations
for award.

137



2

Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 20
January 2007

Project Status Report

HIGH SCHOOLS

 South High School –DLR Group / Lueder Construction
o Construction started April 1, 2006
o Exterior work completed on addition.
o Exterior landscape to be completed in spring.
o Interior painting nearing completion. Ceiling grid in progress.
o Interior classroom renovations on schedule with eight of twelve phases

completed or nearing completion.

South High School –East Entrance (January 11, 2007)

138



3

South High School –Fitness Interior Construction (January 11, 2007)

 North High School –Schemmer Associates / W. Boyd Jones Construction
o Construction Started April 3, 2006.
o Continued construction of restroom renovations.
o Cafeteria / Classroom addition, Science classrooms and Auditorium

renovation completed.
o West parking lot construction scheduled for spring.

North High School –North Elevation Building Addition (January 11, 2007)

139



4

North High School –Cafeteria (January 15, 2007)

North High School –Science Classroom (January 11, 2007)

140



5

 West High School –Prochaska Associates / Meco-Henne Construction
o Construction started on April 3, 2006.
o Exterior Brick walls completed on West classroom addition.
o Interior masonry walls in progress.
o Roofing installation nearing completion on West addition. Roofing on East

band addition started.
o Window installation started on West addition.
o Interior mechanical and electrical systems continue.

West High School –West Building Addition (January 11, 2007)

West High School –East Building Addition (January 11, 2007)

141



6

 Non-Traditional High School - BCDM
o Project implementation / programming started
o Land procurement in final stages

MIDDLE SCHOOL

 Beadle Middle School –BCDM / Meco-Henne Construction
o Construction started June 19, 2006
o Structural steel and decking completed on all wings.
o Roofing installation nearing completion on West wing; completed on East and

South wings.
o Metal stud framing complete on East and South wings; in progress at West

wing.
o Mechanical and Electrical systems in progress at East and South wings.
o Drywall installation started at East wing.
o Exterior Brick masonry progressing on West wing; completed on East and

South wings.

Beadle Middle School –East Building Addition (January 11, 2007)

142



7

Beadle Middle School –South Building Addition (January 11, 2007)

Beadle Middle School –West Building Addition (January 11, 2007)

143



8

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

 Ackerman Elementary –Schemmer Associates / Lueder Construction
o Construction started on June 2, 2006.
o Phase II –Summer 2007 work to commence in June.

 Reagan Elementary #24 –Schemmer Associates / ConStruct, Inc.
o Brick masonry work completed.
o Roofing nearing completion.
o Interior mechanical, electrical systems installation in progress.
o Interior Drywall work in progress. Painting work started.
o Site parking/driveway completed.

Reagan Elementary #24 –East Elevation (January 11, 2007)

Reagan Elementary #24 –Entry Elevation (January 11, 2007)

144



9

Reagan Elementary #24 –Media Center (January 11, 2007)

Reagan Elementary #24 –Classroom (January 11, 2007)

 Upchurch Elementary #25 –DLR Group
o Bids received on January 9, 2007.

145



Original Budget
With Addit'l

Funding Current Budget Total

Variance

Land
Land Cost 3,750,270 3,750,270 3,870,440 (120,170)
Feasibility Study 25,500 25,500 25,500 -

Technology 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
-

Construction -
Contractor -

General 42,707,291 44,357,291 42,152,213 2,205,078
Hazardous Material 472,500 472,500 442,500 30,000
District Procured -

Metal drs and frms 27,916 (27,916)
Casework 69,340 (69,340)
RTU 54,623 (54,623)
Buell Timing System 73,180 (73,180)
Buell Field Grading 36,349 (36,349)

- -
Consultant -

Project Mgr 854,146 886,646 973,600 (86,954)
Architect 3,278,173 3,398,477 3,170,769 227,708
Environmental - - 30,000 (30,000)
Survey 300,333 300,333 300,333 -
Soils - -
Testing - -

Spcl Insp - -
Conductivity - -

Commissioning - -
HVAC 107,396 107,396 107,396 -
Roofing - -

Support Costs - -
Builders Risk - - - -
Printing 125,534 125,534 125,534 -
Software Platform - - 85,000 (85,000)
Reimbursable - - - -

Constructware 10,000 (10,000)
Advertising for bids - - -
Buell Stadium Equip - - 25,000 (25,000)

Contingency 2,328,588 2,328,588 2,328,588 -
PM Award (86,954)

Addit'l Services -
AE Award 268,061

Addit'l Services (40,353)
Constructware (85,000)

Reimbursable (10,000)
Land Development - Elem #24 (120,170)
Buell

Award 253,899
Addit'l Funding 74,471 74,471 74,471
Equipment (25,000)
Timing System (73,180)
Field Grading (35,920)
Buried sprinkler head (429)

Prev Change Orders (72,420)
South HS: Ph1

Prev Change Orders (168)
South HS: Ph2

Award 213,002
Prev Change Orders (81,699)

Elem 24
Award 113,247
Prev Change Orders (34,919)

North HS
Award 1,336,595
Prev Change Orders (386,185)

Delete water line at Add 2,148
Rubber stair tread (700)
Electrical for MPS clocks (3,818)
3-phase pwr at oper wall (1,611)
Carpet 565A (1,478)
Accoustical wall at Aud (12,652)
Remove heater in 110A (320)
Connect roof drain - exist (3,880)
Microph jack at orch pit (263)
Masonry column at 127 (678)
Wash basin shrouds (2,855)
Relocate clocks 907, 914 (881)

West HS
Award 767,075
Prev Change Orders (93,753)

Ackerman Elem
Award 6,254
Prev Change Orders (16,194)

Beadle
Award 92,965
Prev Change Orders (17,512)

Furniture / Fixture / Equipment -
Moveable Furnishings 1,311,307 1,311,307 1,311,307 -
Moveable Equipment 219,291 219,291 219,291 -
Comp; Phones; Copiers; Fax 2,192,015 2,192,015 2,192,015 -

Regulatory Fees / Assessments 327,656 327,656 327,656 -
-

78,000,000 79,877,275 79,877,275 1,918,725

Original Contgy 2,328,588
Buell Stadium Grants 74,471 (Contg'y) Current Contgy 4,247,313
HVAC at South High School 1,802,804 (Constr - 1,650,000 + PM - 32,500 + Arch - 102,304)

79,877,275

Millard Public Schools
January 22, 207

2005 Bond Issue Funding

Additional Funding

Control Budget Summary 012207.xls

10

146



Original Budget
With Addit'l

Funding Ackerman
Reagan Elem

24
Upchurch Elem

25 Beadle MS North HS
South HS
Phase 2

South HS
Phase 1 West HS Non-trad'l HS Buell Stadium Future HS Current Budget Total

07.150.05.01 07.162.05.01 07.163.05.01 07.250.05.01 07.342.05.01 07.340.05.02 07.340.05.01 07.344.05.01 07.333.05.01 07.300.05.01 07.346.05.01 Variance

Land
Land Cost 3,750,270 3,750,270 561,470 441,300 661,770 2,205,900 3,870,440 (120,170)
Feasibility Study 25,500 25,500 4,500 4,500 6,500 10,000 25,500 -

Technology 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
-

Construction -
Contractor -

General 42,707,291 44,357,291 2,284,894 6,505,419 6,474,000 2,445,912 4,676,773 6,846,499 80,168 4,800,753 6,900,000 1,137,795 - 42,152,213 2,205,078
Hazardous Material 472,500 472,500 35,000 25,000 289,284 93,216 442,500 30,000
District Procured -

Metal drs and frms 24,718 3,198 27,916 (27,916)
Casework 69,340 69,340 (69,340)
RTU 54,623 54,623 (54,623)
Buell Timing System 73,180 73,180 (73,180)
Buell Field Grading 36,349 36,349 (36,349)

- -
Consultant -

Project Mgr 854,146 886,646 89,000 90,000 108,700 107,800 128,200 160,700 128,200 123,000 38,000 - 973,600 (86,954)
Architect 3,278,173 3,398,477 201,889 290,343 420,353 187,000 466,497 595,304 425,883 518,000 65,500 3,170,769 227,708
Environmental - - 30,000 30,000 (30,000)
Survey 300,333 300,333 19,416 50,350 49,202 19,162 35,000 35,000 39,763 52,440 300,333 -
Soils - -
Testing - -

Spcl Insp - -
Conductivity - -

Commissioning - -
HVAC 107,396 107,396 7,766 20,140 20,069 7,816 8,548 4,697 16,970 21,390 - 107,396 -
Roofing - -

Support Costs - -
Builders Risk - - - -
Printing 125,534 125,534 15,000 15,000 17,000 12,000 15,000 15,000 16,500 17,000 3,034 - 125,534 -
Software Platform - - 85,000 (85,000)
Reimbursable - - - -

Constructware 10,000 (10,000)
Advertising for bids - - -
Buell Stadium Equip - - 25,000 25,000 (25,000)

Contingency 2,328,588 2,328,588 2,328,588 -
PM Award (86,954)

Addit'l Services -
AE Award 268,061

Addit'l Services (40,353)
Constructware (85,000)

Reimbursable (10,000)
Land Development - Elem #24 (120,170)
Buell

Award 253,899
Addit'l Funding 74,471 74,471 74,471
Equipment (25,000)
Timing System (73,180)
Field Grading (35,920)
Buried sprinkler head (429)

Prev Change Orders (72,420)
South HS: Ph1

Prev Change Orders (168)
South HS: Ph2

Award 213,002
Prev Change Orders (81,699)

Elem 24
Award 113,247
Prev Change Orders (34,919)

North HS
Award 1,336,595
Prev Change Orders (386,185)

Delete water line at Add 2,148
Rubber stair tread (700)
Electrical for MPS clocks (3,818)
3-phase pwr at oper wall (1,611)
Carpet 565A (1,478)
Accoustical wall at Aud (12,652)
Remove heater in 110A (320)
Connect roof drain - exist (3,880)
Microph jack at orch pit (263)
Masonry column at 127 (678)
Wash basin shrouds (2,855)
Relocate clocks 907, 914 (881)

West HS
Award 767,075
Prev Change Orders (93,753)

Ackerman Elem
Award 6,254
Prev Change Orders (16,194)

Beadle
Award 92,965
Prev Change Orders (17,512)

Furniture / Fixture / Equipment -
Moveable Furnishings 1,311,307 1,311,307 - 269,933 265,434 103,376 113,037 62,115 214,512 282,900 - 1,311,307 -
Moveable Equipment 219,291 219,291 14,621 37,917 37,549 14,624 15,991 26,819 31,750 40,020 - 219,291 -
Comp; Phones; Copiers; Fax 2,192,015 2,192,015 85,020 384,000 375,492 199,188 193,025 106,050 366,240 483,000 - 2,192,015 -

Regulatory Fees / Assessments 327,656 327,656 24,033 62,324 61,503 23,953 26,196 14,393 49,704 65,550 327,656 -
-

78,000,000 79,877,275 2,925,320 8,291,396 8,275,102 3,120,831 5,703,267 8,155,861 206,582 6,090,275 9,171,570 1,378,858 2,215,900 79,877,275 1,918,725

Original Contgy 2,328,588
Buell Stadium Grants 74,471 (Contg'y) Current Contgy 4,247,313
HVAC at South High School 1,802,804 (Constr - 1,650,000 + PM - 32,500 + Arch - 102,304)

79,877,275

Millard Public Schools
January 22, 207

2005 Bond Issue Funding

Additional Funding

Control Budget Detailed Summary 012207.xls

11

147



January February

Bond Committee Meetings 4, 11, 18, 25 1, 8, 15, 22
Board Committee of the Whole Meetings 15 12
Board Meetings 8, 22 5, 19

Project Receive Bids Project

Commencement Bond Committee Bond Committee School Board Bond Committee School Board Bond Committee School Board Completion

Elem Schools
Ackerman 3-Aug-05 16-Nov-05 12-Jan-06 16-Jan-06 23-Feb-06 20-Mar-06 18-Apr-06 20-Apr-06 01-May-06 01-Aug-07

Reagan Elem #24

Overlot Grading 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 14-Sep-05 15-Sep-05 19-Sep-05 15-Feb-06

Public Improv. 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 25-Oct-05 27-Oct-05 07-Nov-05 08-Jun-06

Building 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 25-Oct-05 27-Oct-05 07-Nov-05 01-Jun-07

Upchurch Elem #25 19-Aug-05 17-Nov-05 15-Dec-05 16-Jan-06 23-Mar-06 03-Apr-06 09-Jan-07 11-Jan-07 22-Jan-07 01-Jun-08

Middle Schools
Beadle MS 12-Dec-05 09-Mar-06 06-Mar-06 06-Apr-06 17-Apr-06 23-May-06 25-May-06 05-Jun-06 01-Jun-07

High Schools
Buell Stadium 28-Aug-05

North HS 21-Jul-05 01-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 01-Dec-05 19-Dec-05 07-Feb-06 09-Feb-05 20-Mar-06 01-Jul-07

South HS

Phase I 2005 26-May-05 06-Jun-05 07-Jun-05 09-Jun-05 14-Jun-05 05-Aug-05

Phase II - 2006 14-Jul-05 11-Aug-05 15-Aug-05 20-Oct-05 21-Nov-05 24-Jan-06 26-Jan-06 13-Feb-06 01-Jul-07

West HS 11-Aug-05 06-Oct-05 17-Oct-05 29-Dec-05 16-Jan-06 02-Mar-06 09-Mar-06 20-Mar-06 01-Jul-07

Non-traditional HS 23-Jan-07 01-Jun-09

NOTE: Dates shown in light blue italics are tentative projections to be confirmed; dates shown in dark blue/italics are Board action dates

Design Development Contract Documents Contract AwardProject
Program /

Schematic Design

Board Schedule 012207.xls

12

148



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Special Projects Report (Not Bond Issue Related)

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Quarterly Construction Report – A report of the on-going progress on significant

construction projects (other than bond issue projects) in the District.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: n/a

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) and Ed Rockwell (Gen.
Mgr. for Support Services)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

149



Discipline Location Project Description

Estimated 
Construction 

Cost
Civil NHS Re-stripe running track 5,000

SHS Re-stripe running track 5,000
WHS Recondition tennis court surfaces, improve drainage add gates, 40,750
NHS & WHS Modify shot put and discus events for new NSAA sector regulations 84,200
Multiple Sites Irrigation Management System for Bryan, AMS, BMS, CMS, NMS 19,000
Rockwell Replace and improve south concrete steps 24,500
NMS - Base Bid Replace dock and concrete paving at entire dock drive 101,100
NMS - Alternate 1 Replace concrete paving at south drive areas 55,850
Buell Stadium Replace entire concrete apron at top of stadium on Home Side 77,800
Holling Heights Base Bid Front main sidewalks replaced 14,900
Holling Heights Alternate 1 Replace & improve northeast concrete play area and sidewalk 62,675

Architectural SHS Sand, re-paint striping, re-finish Main Gym floor 31,500
SHS Sand, re-paint striping, re-finish 9-10 Gym floor 23,750
NMS Install power tractor system 20,000
AMS, RMS, NHS Modify 1st row aisle step at 23 bleacher locations for safety 11,700
Multiple Locations (8) Metal door frames, doors and hardware replaced 131,400
Neihardt Replace two cedar soffits and fascia with new EIFS surfaces 26,200
NHS * Remediation of mold in wall cavities at perimeter of SE wing * 660,000
Aldrich Replace carpet throughout 106,000
WHS Replace carpet Phase I of III 81,900
AMS Re-paint all corridors 42,000
Sandoz Re-roof Phase II of II and replacement of 5 roof-top HVAC units 971,800
Holling Heights Re-roof Phase II of II 305,700
NHS Re-roof Phase I-07 453,000
KMS Exterior caulking, sealing, tuck-pointing, flashing, drip edges 46,200
Holling Heights Exterior caulking, sealing, tuck-pointing, flashing, drip edges 22,400
Harvey Oaks Exterior caulking, sealing, tuck-pointing, flashing, drip edges 26,400
Bryan Exterior caulking, sealing, tuck-pointing, flashing, drip edges 38,150

Mechanical Cottonwood Replace washfountains in all student restrooms 30,000
Hitchcock Replace washfountains in all student restrooms 60,000
Ezra HVAC Improvements 183,388
BMS HVAC Improvements Phase II of II 200,000
CMS Abandon AHU under stage area, replace with RTU 55,000
AMS HVAC Improvements Phase II of II (evaluation does indicate need) 491,000
RMS Study HVAC Improvements for make-up air and exhaust 16,500

Estimated sub-total construction costs 4,524,763
10% Contingency 452,476

Estimated sub-total soft costs @18% 814,457
Estimated total cost of projects $5,791,697

Revisions: Three bleacher aisle step locations consolidated
Eight door and frame replacement locations consolidated
Sandoz re-roof Phase II and RTU replacements consolidated 

Summary Project Status: All architects, engineers and consultants have been engaged
Preliminary schedules have been established
Design development is in progress on all projects
Pre-purchase of long lead equipment is being arranged
Coordination with District summer programs is in progress

*cost shown for NHS as placeholder only, not legitimate estimate *

Special Projects for Summer 2007 - Costs & Status
First presented to the Board Committee of the Whole November 27, 2006

150



Special Projects for Summer 2007 - A/E Assignment & Schedule

Site Project A/E Firm

Consulting       
or       

Commissioning   
Firm

Date       
Out to Bid

Bids Due        
Date & Time

Date to Seek 
Board Approval 

of Award 
(Mondays)

Contract 
Start Date

Earliest 
Start Date 
w/o Snow 

Days

Contract 
Completion Date 
(demobilized and 

off-site)
NHS & SHS Re-stripe running tracks BCDM 2/14/07 3/13/07 3:00 PM 3/19/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
WHS Recondition tennis court surfaces, improve drainage, add gates LRA 2/28/07 3/27/07 2:00 PM 4/2/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
NHS & WHS Modify shot put and discus events for new NSAA sector regulations DLR 3/1/07 3/28/07 2:00 PM 4/2/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
Multiple Sites Irrigation Management System: Bryan, AMS, BMS, CMS, NMS na Midwest Turf 2/14/07 3/13/07 10:00 AM na 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

Rockwell Replace and improve south concrete steps E & A 3/2/07 3/29/06 2:00 PM 4/2/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
NMS Replace dock & paving  at west drive, replace paving at south drive LRA 2/28/07 3/27/07 2:30 PM 4/2/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
Buell Stadium Plaza Replace concrete plaza paving (3 panel width) at Home side DLR 3/1/07 3/28/07 2:30 PM 4/2/07 5/21/07 5/21/07 7/27/07
Holling Heights Front parade walk replaced, NE play area flatwork replaced E & A 3/2/07 3/29/07 2:30 PM 4/2/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

SHS Sand, re-paint striping, re-finish Main Gym & Auxillary Gym floors DLR 2/14/07 3/13/07 2:30 PM 3/19/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
NMS Install power tractor system for gym bleachers na RFP na na 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
AMS, RMS, NHS Modify 1st row gym bleacher aisle step at 23 locations for safety na RFP na na 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

RMS North and West exit doors replaced (4 pairs)

TSA 1/30/2007 2/27/07 11:00 AM 3/5/2007 6/4/2007 5/29/2007 7/27/2007

KMS North entrance doors replaced (2 pairs)
Neihardt Front entrance doors replaced (1 pair)
Harvey Oaks Mechanical Room exterior doors replaced (1 pair)
Cody Dock door replaced (one single door)
Cather Main entrance doors replaced (2 pairs)
NHS 5 East exit doors replaced (5 pairs)
SHS Wood Shop exterior door replaced (one single door)

Neihardt Replace two cedar soffits and fascia with new EIFS surfaces TSA 3/1/07 3/27/07 10:30 AM 4/2/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

NHS Remediation of mold in wall cavities at perimeter of SE wing AMI TSA 2/14/07 3/13/07 2:00 PM 4/2/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
NHS Reconstruction of exterior walls and related components TSA AMI 3/1/07 3/27/07 11:00 AM 4/2/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07 (interior)

Aldrich Replace carpet throughout BCDM 2/16/07 3/15/07 2:00 PM 3/19/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
WHS Replace carpet Phase I of III BCDM 2/16/07 3/15/07 2:30 PM 3/19/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

AMS Re-paint all corridors BCDM 2/14/07 3/13/07 3:30 AM 3/19/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

Sandoz Re-roof and RTU Replacements Phase II of II BVH-MEI Bldg Cx 2/5/07 2/28/07 2:00 PM 3/5/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
RSI

Holling Heights Re-roof Phase II of II BVH RSI 2/15/07 3/14/07 2:00 PM 3/19/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
NHS Re-roof Phase I-07 BVH RSI 2/15/07 3/14/07 2:30 AM 3/19/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

KMS Exterior caulking, sealing, tuck-pointing, flashing, drip edges

na RFP na na 6/4/2007 5/29/2007 7/27/2007
Holling Heights Exterior caulking, sealing, tuck-pointing, flashing, drip edges
Harvey Oaks Exterior caulking, sealing, tuck-pointing, flashing, drip edges
Bryan Exterior caulking, sealing, tuck-pointing, flashing, drip edges

Cottonwood Replace washfountains in all student restrooms MEI 1/30/07 2/27/07 10:00 AM 3/5/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
Hitchcock Replace washfountains in all student restrooms MEI 1/30/07 2/27/07 10:30 AM 3/5/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

Ezra HVAC Improvements & chiller replacement TSA Bldg Cx 1/30/07 2/28/07 2:30 AM 3/5/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
AMS HVAC Improvements Phase II of II MEI Siemens 1/30/07 2/27/07 2:00 PM 3/5/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

BalCon
BMS HVAC Improvements Phase II of II BCDM / Alvine Siemens 1/23/07 2/13/07 2:00 PM 2/19/07 4/2/07 4/2/07 7/13/07
CMS Abandon AHU under stage area, replace with RTU MEI Siemens / AMI 1/30/07 2/27/07 2:30 PM 3/5/07 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07
RMS Study HVAC Improvements for make-up air and exhaust MEI Siemens na na na 6/4/07 5/29/07 7/27/07

151



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly M&O Report

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2997

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Quarterly M&O Report – The quarterly report from Sodexho regarding the District’s

Maintenance and Operations.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: n/a

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Bob Snowden, General Manager (Sodexho) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent
(General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

152



Millard Public Schools
Executive Summary

Quarterly Review
October – December 2006

I. Accomplishments

MAINTENANCE HIGHLIGHTS

 The Carpentry and Mechanical Departments continued to assist on all bond projects.
This included preparing the North High addition for a January opening. We are also
in the process of tagging all new equipment at Reagan Elementary.

 Domestic hot water boilers were replaced at West High due to leaks. Both were
replaced with high efficiency boilers.

 Re-tubed one of the boilers at Central Middle School.
 Building Engineer vacancies were filled at Andersen Middle, South High and West

High. Currently, all maintenance staff positions are filled.
 Installed a new ‘sock’ filter system at Wheeler and flushed the heat pump loop.
 Steve Laire has had numerous meetings with OPPD and UNL to continue to make

adjustments and improvements to the West High Continuous Commissioning project.
 Replaced main gas regulator and equipment regulators at Black Elk to compensate for

low gas pressure in the building.
 Replaced the fire alarm panel at Neihardt due to the old panel failing. Further

improvements and upgrades to the fire alarm system will be done over the summer of
2007.

 Indoor Air Quality issues were investigated at the following:
o South High, 400 wing classroom – no issues found.
o North High, southeast wing – reviewed and turned over to Project

Manager.
o Sandoz, media center – issue found and resolved.
o West High, Family Consumer Sciences – item found and resolved.

 Basketball safety straps were installed at Andersen, Russell and North Middle.
 Bleacher repairs were made at North High, and additional bleacher inspections are

being performed at all Middle and High Schools.
 The stage extension at West High was repaired and reinforced to accommodate ADA

students.
 At Sandoz, 16 thermo pane windows were replaced and 30 others caulked.
 At Black Elk, Russell and Kiewit, repairs were made to the movable partitions.
 Sixteen window repairs/replacements occurred during the quarter due to vandalism.
 Twenty-three emergency roof repairs were made during the quarter.
 A sewer line was replaced at Cody.

153



I. Accomplishments (continued)

GROUNDS HIGHLIGHTS

 Below is an update on the computerized irrigation system that was installed last
summer at all three High Schools. In addition to the time savings we are seeing in
how long these three schools consumed in man-power to monitor and change
irrigation settings; we are seeing substantial savings in water usage at all three sites.

JULY Ave. Monthly
Temp.

Total
Precipitation for

Month
Overall Average 75.8 3.86

2005 77.7 5.37
Historical

Information
2006 78.0 3.35

Water Usage
(gal)

Total $

North High 2005 1,849,804 $2,794.31
2006 1,326,952 $2,102.66

South High 2005 N/A N/A
2006 N/A N/A

West High 2005 3,754,960 $5,587.15
2006 2,371,160 $1,886.26

Total Monthly Savings $2,575.91

August Ave. Monthly
Temp.

Total
Precipitation for

Month
Overall Average 73.6 3.21

2005 74.1 3.04
Historical

Information
2006 73.6 7.27

Water Usage
(gal)

Total $

North High 2005 937,992 $1,400.21
2006 448,052 $ 693.83

South High 2005 1,195,304 $1,793.06
2006 625,328 $ 997.99

West High 2005 2,760,120 $4,098.62
2006 1,488,520 $2,314.36

Total Monthly Savings $3,305.71

154



I. Accomplishments (continued)

September Ave. Monthly
Temp.

Total
Precipitation for

Month
Overall Average 65.1 3.17

2005 61.8 5.47
Historical

Information
2006 69.9 1.55

Water Usage
(gal)

Total $

North High 2005 614,108 $905.72
2006 279,752 $424.06

South High 2005 1,078,616 $1,614.90
2006 769,692 $1,209.40

West High 2005 1,294,040 $1,904.99
2006 474,232 $ 721.06

Total Monthly Savings $2,071.09

We will continue to track these sites as well as other sites that are added to the system
and report savings in future reports.

 Tree trimming throughout the District was completed
 The grounds teams continued to mulch and woodchip during the quarter.
 All athletic fields were seeded and aerated prior to winter.
 All irrigation systems were winterized for the season.
 All snow removal equipment was prepped for the upcoming season. All supplies

were ordered and delivered.
 One snow removal operation was completed over the New Years holiday weekend.
 Terry Haubold will begin interviewing for all open Grounds positions during the

upcoming quarter. We currently have 2 10-month vacancies and 1 Full Time
vacancy.

 Concrete work was completed at the following locations:
o Kiewit – dock drive and sidewalk repairs
o Andersen – front entrance repairs
o Willowdale – kindergarten entrance
o Wheeler – bus drop off sidewalk
o Black Elk – front entrance repairs
o Disney – back drop off area and ADA stalls
o Ackerman – sidewalk on north side

 At North High, the Grounds Crew rebuilt the baseball pitchers mound.

155



I. Accomplishments (continued)

 Pruned damaged cottonwood tree at Cottonwood.
 Installed drainage tile along back sidewalk at Reeder to improve drainage and correct

erosion issues.
 Installed sod at Cody due to sewer line repair work.
 Various components of playground equipment were replaced at six locations due to

either vandalism or age.
 Made miscellaneous repairs to South and North running tracks.

CUSTODIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 North High addition was prepared by the Custodial Department in late December for
occupancy in January.

 The multi-purpose room and nurses office at Kiewit was stripped and refinished over
October Break.

 All schools over October Break and the Holiday Break received small project
cleaning that included furniture cleaning, restroom project cleaning, miscellaneous
carpet extraction, floor burnishing and general area cleaning.

 At South High, the custodial crews continued to assist bond construction by moving
out and back into renovated rooms during the numerous phases. This process was
repeated for phases 7 thru 11 and will continue through the remainder of the school
year and summer.

GENERAL HIGHLIGHTS

 John Maguire was hired by Sodexho as the new Mechanical Manager. John will
report to Steve Laire, and assist in handling the day-to-day operations in Mechanical,
Electrical and Plumbing.

 Kevin Becker and Terry Haubold will attend the Sports Turf Management
Association seminar in January. They will attend classes on both natural and
synthetic turf care.

 The management team continued to support bond construction work.
 The management team prepared their recommendations for the summer 2007 capital

improvement projects. Bob Snowden, Terry Haubold, Kevin Becker and Dennis
Bouckhuyt participated in the Project Planning Meeting held by Ed Rockwell to
determine final recommendations.

 Bob Snowden attended various meetings to discuss and plan for installation of Door
Access control at various locations.

 Steve Laire and Bob Snowden met with OPPD to review the energy audit report for
the previous year.

 Mike Majors was in for a support visit on October 30 and 31.

156



I. Accomplishments (continued)

 Pat O’Hara-Shults, a Sodexho Support Engineer was in from October 28th –
December 15th. Pat’s visit was to help update and revise the following training
programs:

o Maintenance New Employee and Annual Safety Manual
o Custodial New Employee and Annual Safety Manual
o Custodial Job Process and Procedural Manual

Pat will be returning in January to finalize these items as well as conduct any final
reviews and training with the Management Team.

II. Training

 Sixty-three MPS employees attended Accident Prevention Training in October.
Total Training Hours: 15.75

 Sixty-four employees attended Fire Safety Training in October. Total Training
Hours: 16

 Fourteen MPS employees attended Life Safety Training in October: Total Training
Hours: 3.5

 Two new custodians were hired and trained in October: Total Training Hours: 16
 Two custodians at Ezra received snow blow training in October: Total Training

Hours: 1
 Three MPS employees received Accident Prevention Training in November: Total

Training Hours: 1
 Chemical Safety Training was given to 134 custodians in November: Total Training

Hours: 33.5
 Two new custodians were hired and trained in November: Total Training Hours: 16
 Fourteen MPS Groundsman and Custodians received training on the new Toro Power

Snow Throwers: Total Training Hours: 14
 Seventy-eight custodians received Snow Blower Safety and Maintenance Training in

November: Total Training Hours: 29.75
 Nine maintenance employees attended ‘Fire-Eye’ Training held by Setpoint controls

on December 12th. Total Training Hours: 18
 Two new custodians were hired and trained in December: Total Training Hours: 16
 Equipment Safety Training was given to 123 custodians in December: Total

Training Hours: 30.75
 Pat O’Hara-Shults conducted a “Train the Trainer” class for the four Custodial

Managers. This training included the material covering both Safety and Cleaning
Process/Procedures. Total Training Hours: 32

 Mechanical personnel were trained on the new systems at Ackerman and North High.

157



II. Training (continued)

2006-2007 School Year MPS Training Totals by Quarter

Training Period Total Hours
July – September 2006 116.25
October – December 2006 234.50
School Year to Date 350.75

III. Quality and Productivity

MONTHLY CUSTODIAL INSPECTIONS
The Monthly Inspections began in September and will continue through the current
school year. Results will be reported during each quarterly report for the current months,
as well as the comparison for both Monthly and Year to Date numbers.

Monthly Custodial Inspections

October 06 October 05

District Average 89.547% 89.099%
High School 86.440% 84.550%
Middle School 92.464% 92.707%
Elementary/Other 89.015% 88.791%

November 06 November 05

District Average 88.970% 88.353%
High School 87.253% 84.111%
Middle School 91.011% 91.703%
Elementary/Other 88.697% 88.070%

December 06 December 05

District Average 88.990% 88.125%
High School 85.824% 86.837%
Middle School 90.622% 91.136%
Elementary/Other 88.979% 87.578%

YTD 06-05 YTD 05-06 YTD 04-05 YTD 03-04

District Average 89.228% 88.626% 88.515% 85.387%
High School 86.694% 85.362% 87.716% 82.037%
Middle School 91.563% 91.604% 88.395% 82.741%
Elementary/Other 88.981% 88.316% 88.640% 86.443%

158



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

TEACHER SURVEYS – All Department Survey
The Teacher Surveys continued through the current school year. Results for the previous
quarter as well as the Year to Date comparisons will be reported each Quarter. The
surveys are on a scale of 1 to 5, with 5 = Excellent, 3 = Average and 1 = Poor. Below are
the results:

October 2006
72 Surveys

Overall Average Custodial Average Maintenance
Average

Grounds Average

District Average 4.38 4.40 4.39 4.23
High School - - - -
Middle School 4.69 4.67 4.77 4.52
Elementary School 4.21 4.26 4.18 4.08

November 2006
100 Surveys

Overall Average Custodial Average Maintenance
Average

Grounds Average

District Average 4.27 4.32 4.25 4.17
High School - - - -
Middle School 4.48 4.54 4.44 4.35
Elementary School 4.13 4.16 4.11 4.04

December 2006
103 Surveys

Overall Average Custodial Average Maintenance
Average

Grounds Average

District Average 4.40 4.40 4.49 4.14
High School - - - -
Middle School 4.54 4.52 4.62 4.37
Elementary School 4.35 4.36 4.44 4.05

0

20

40

60

80

100

District High Middle Elem entary

2003-2004

2004-2005

2005-2006

2006-2007

159



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

Comparison of District Average by Year and Department

Comparison by School Type

Below is a breakdown on how the teachers rated their school grounds. The District is
broken up into three grounds crews. Below are the results for current year as well as
Year to Date results from previous school years.

Number of
Surveys

District
Average

Custodial
Average

Maintenance Average Grounds
Average

2006-2007 YTD 463 4.33 4.34 4.37 4.20
2005-2006 YTD 1001 4.20 4.16 4.29 4.13
2004-2005 YTD 1074 4.17 4.14 4.25 4.02
2003-2004 YTD 351 4.11 4.10 4.19 3.96

High School Middle School Elementary School

2006-2007 YTD 4.24 4.58 4.25
2005-2006 YTD 4.01 4.46 4.21
2004-2005 YTD 4.09 4.49 4.04
2003-2004 YTD 3.98 4.32 4.13

Grounds Crew
1

Grounds Crew
2

Grounds Crew
3

2006-2007 YTD 4.34 4.14 4.15
2005-2006 YTD 4.31 4.07 4.10
2004-2005 YTD 4.07 3.96 4.05
2003-2004 YTD 4.12 3.87 4.00

3.6
3.7

3.8
3.9

4

4.1
4.2
4.3

4.4
4.5
4.6

District High Middle Elementary

2003-2004

2004-2005

2005-5006

2006-2007

160



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

MAINTENANCE WORK ORDERS

Below is a breakdown for work orders received, completed for the quarter, and still open
to date:

Received Completed Open
Grounds 249 285 94
Carpentry 487 569 160
Paint 54 53 67
Custodial 15 21 5
Flooring 29 31 15
Electrical 100 111 15
HVAC/Mechanical 1073 1138 370
Vehicle Mechanic 77 79 12
Total 2084 2287 738

Percentage of Open Work Orders by Department

1.6%

2.0%

9.1%

0.7%

21.7%

12.7%

50.2%

2.0%

Grounds

Carpentry

Paint

Custodial

Flooring

Electrical

Mechanical

Vehicle

Percentage of Work Orders Received by Department

3.7%

1.4%

2.6%

0.7%

23.4%

11.9%

51.5%

4.8%

Grounds

Carpentry

Paint

Custodial

Flooring

Electrical

Mechanical

Vehicle

161



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

Below is a breakdown off all open work orders in the system by age (in days) through
12/31/06:

Days Open 0-1 2-3 4-7 8-14 15-21 22-28 29-60 61-90 90+
Grounds 0 20 0 1 4 1 2 4 62
Carpentry 19 18 4 9 12 5 15 34 44
Paint 1 5 0 2 6 1 7 5 40
Custodial 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4
Flooring 0 1 0 0 1 1 3 0 9
Electrical 5 4 0 2 3 0 1 0 0
HVAC/Mechanical 17 19 24 24 32 28 32 21 173
Vehicle Mechanic 0 5 0 1 2 1 2 0 1

Total 42 72 28 39 61 37 62 64 333

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE
Below is a breakdown of all Preventative Maintenance work orders open and completed,
as well as age of open Preventative Maintenance (in days) for the period of October –
December 2006.

Open as of
1/5/07

Total
Completed

800 620

Days Open 0-1 2-3 4-7 8-14 15-21 22-28 29-60 61-90 90+
Grounds 51 0 6 28 0 0 0 0 5
Carpentry 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Custodial 112 0 10 7 0 0 5 4 62
HVAC/Mechanical 56 0 0 10 1 0 0 1 131
Vehicle Mechanic 32 0 4 9 1 25 8 7 76

Total 251 0 20 54 2 25 18 12 418

WORK ORDER HOURS
Below is a summary of the amount of hours worked by location for all work orders
submitted for the period of October – December 2006: (Includes Grounds, Maintenance
and Custodial).

162



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)
School Hours Worked
Abbott 209.25
Ackerman 306.25
Aldrich 138.25
Black Elk 287.75
Bryan 201.75
Cather 105.75
Cody 208.50
Cottonwood 149.00
Disney 96.50
Ezra 204.50
Harvey Oaks 144.00
Hitchcock 98.50
Holling Heights 130.75
Montclair 147.50
Morton 164.50
Neihardt 188.00
Norris 192.00
Reagan 5.00
Reeder 228.50
Rockwell 317.00
Rohwer 94.25
Sandoz 190.25
Wheeler 287.75
Willowdale 201.50

Elementary Total 4297.00
Andersen 415.25
Beadle 126.75
Central 373.75
Kiewit 207.50
North 146.00
Russell 259.25

Middle Total 1528.50
MLC 70.75
North 615.75
South 928.50
West 446.75

High Total 2061.75
DSAC 124.75
SSC, District Wide, & Misc. 2928.75

Other Total 3053.50
Grand Total 10940.75

163



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

CUSTODIAL ABSENCES

Below is a summary of the custodial absences for the quarter, along with a total for the
quarter and school year to date.

October
2006

Hours

November
2006

Hours

December
2006

Hours

Quarter Totals
Hours

2006 – 2007
Year to Date

Business and Emergency 48 76 44 168 320
Bereavement 40 32 56 128 200
Family Sick 48 56 8 112 241
Jury Duty 0 0 0 0 8
Leave without Pay 56 56 56 168 584
Leave with Pay 24 0 0 24 24
Professional Leave 0 0 0 0 0
Sick 982 712 480 2174 4390
Vacation 908 772 1332 3012 6612
Total Absences 2106 1704 1976 5786 12378
Percentage of
Scheduled Work
Absent

8.8% 7.8% 9.6% 8.7% 9.4%

CUSTODIAL MANAGER VISITS
(October – December 2006)

Inspections Completed 232
Principal Visits Completed 313
Total Site Visits Completed 1873

IV. Goals

 Continue interviewing and hiring for all open positions.
 Continue planning to improve ‘curb appeal’ at select sites. Continue the process of

developing landscaping plans throughout the District. Make plans for spring
plantings.

 Continue to monitor the MPS budget.
 Continue to assist with Bond Project planning as needed and attend the Bond

Committee Meetings weekly, as well as site-specific construction meetings as
scheduled.

 Managers will continue to be involved in specific planning meetings regarding the
Bond Projects as well as the Capital Improvement Projects.

164



IV. Goals (continued)

 Plan out small maintenance and custodial projects to be completed over the Spring
Break.

 Begin planning on the spring and summer mowing schedule.
 Begin and finalize schedules for additional employees, equipment and the opening up

of additions at Beadle, West and South as well as the opening of Reagan Elementary.
 Implement new Training Manual that Pat O’Hara-Shults completed.

165



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Food Service Report

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Quarterly Food Service Report – A report on the District’s Food Service program managed

by ARAMARK.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: n/a

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) and Jim Stilwell
(ARAMARK‘s General Manager)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: _________Keith Lutz_________________

166



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Food Service Report 
 
MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Quarterly Food Service Report – A report on the District’s Food Service program managed 

by ARAMARK. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval             Discussion             Information Only     x                                 .       
 
BACKGROUND: n/a 
 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) and Jim Stilwell 

(ARAMARK‘s General Manager) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

167



JAMES STILWELL 
GENERAL MANAGER 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 
 
Dr. Ken Fossen 
Associate Superintendent 
Millard Public Schools 
5606 South 147th Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 
Dear Dr. Fossen, 
A summary of Millard Food Service’s financial performance, participation and operational highlights follows.  If you 
need any further detail regarding our department, please ask. 

Financial Performance 
During the 2nd Quarter of SY07, Millard Food Service had a gross return of $309.2k.  From Total Income, the 
department transferred $146.9k to building activity funds and $48.7k to the Custodian fund.  This left an operational 

return of $113.6k.  When compared to the 2nd 
Quarter of SY06, our performance remains 
strong.  In a year where meal prices were not 
raised, there is only a ($8.6k) difference in our 
net return.  Our returns were also accomplished 
despite the fact that we increased building 
allocations, inter-departmental transfers and 
made the strategic decision to offer an on-line 
payment gateway at no cost to our families.  
Using the table to the left as a reference: 

Total Income: Taking into consideration that 2nd 
Quarter SY2007 had one additional service day, 
Millard Food Service showed revenue growth of 
7.3%.  Revenue grew on increased enrollment 
and participation.  With the exception of vending 
commissions, every category showed growth. 

ARAMARK Expenditures: Proportionately, Cost of Sales (food cost) has increased by one percent.  This was due in 
small part to general inflation, but more because of our movement away from products that contain Trans Fats which 
are higher in price and an emphasis on increasing consumption from the “all-you-can-eat” fruit and vegetable carts in 
the elementary buildings.  We feel this has been an affordable increase when compared to all the benefits received.  
Management Labor grew because of the shift of the Catering Manager from District to ARAMARK payroll, while 
Direct Expenses and Management Fees remained flat. 

District Expenditures: With one exception, all categories increased proportionately based upon either the increase in 
sales volume or the expected increase in labor and benefit 
expense.  Merchant Fees is the exception.  To date, 22% 
of our income has derived from on-line payments.  
Through December, we have recorded $981.6k in 
electronic prepayments.  Among many things, this has: 
• Enhanced parent satisfaction with services offered 
• Lowered paraprofessional dependency in elementaries 
• Allowed us to move to only three armored car 

deposits per week in the elementary buildings for a 
yearly savings of nearly $12k 

• Noticeably sped up the serving lines 

168



Looking forward, we forecasted SY07 to have a Gross Return of $564k and a net return of $114k.  This net return is 
forecasted to be about half of what SY06 realized.  It is becoming evident that we will surpass these expectations.  
Baring unforeseen circumstances, we are prepared to raise guidance and our departmental goal to a Gross 
Return of $600k and a net return of $175k. 

It is not too soon to begin thoughts and discussions in regards to meal prices for the 2007-08 school year.  On top of 
inflationary pressures on food and customary increases  in labor and benefit expense, Millard Food Service will have the 
additional obstacles of opening a new building and implementing an aggressive wellness policy at the high school level.  
However, to achieve Board Policy 3715, we are prepared to recommend – even at this early stage – that no price 
increases will be necessary.  Board Policy 3715 states “The prices established for the sale food and beverages in the 
food service program shall be such that the revenues received shall at least offset the direct expenditures of the 
program.”  This refers to our accounting term, Gross Return, which is forecasted to remain positive at the current price 
structure. 

Meals and Participation 
Meals and Participation continued to climb to new highs.  Qualifying Lunch counts has risen 5.4% over last year with 
participation growing 1.8%.  High Schools have seen the largest participation increase with 3.9%.  Elementary buildings 
grew a minor .2% while Middle Schools actually decreased by (2.5%).  Aware of a possible “plateau” forming in 
participation, we will reenergize all efforts during the second semester.  Through investigation, we intend to seek out 
any complacency with our lunch service and certainly remedy any dissatisfaction.  In analyzing participation, it is 
important to realize how far we have come and how high participation comparatively is. This month I have included a 
SY03 base line within the participation graphs in the attached dashboard.  This showcases the grand achievements made 
by our building level staff. 

Most impressively, Qualifying Breakfast counts increased 27.7% while participation increased an impressive 22.1%.  
Breakfast will remain a targeted growth area for years to come.  These statistics are also detailed in the attached 
dashboard.   

Nutrition Committee Meets 
Since my last quarterly report, the District’s Nutrition and Wellness Committee met.  The purpose of the meeting was to 
help guide the District’s decision making process when creating the nutritional requirements of our Beverage Vendor 
RFP.  At the conclusion of this school year, the District’s master contract with Coca-Cola ends after an eight year 
partnership.  Much has happened since the original contract was signed.  Coca-Cola, along with all major beverage 
distributors, signed an agreement with the Alliance for a Healthier Generation to limit portion sizes and reduce the 
number of calories available to children during the school day. Under these guidelines, only lower calorie and nutritious 
beverages will be sold to schools.  Representatives from Coke were on hand to answer questions and showcase the 
current products that would be available to Millard.  The committee overwhelmingly voted to adopt the guidelines 
recommended by the Alliance.  Because of the limited product selection and the buying preferences of our students, 
there are some serious financial risks involved.  Although it is difficult to determine, a safe and conservative 
estimate suggests that as much as $250k in sales will be in jeopardy.  We would hope that our marketing plans will 
displace much of this to new or existing products, but we’d be foolish to think we could recapture it all. 

Management Training Classes to Begin 
During the second semester, we will begin training classes and workshops for existing members of our department who 
aspire to become Building Managers.  They are Connie Goeser (KMS), Debra Hopkinson (CMS), Elan Pigula (WHS), 
Eva Kinyon (NHS), Shelley Norland (NHS) and Marie Walker (NHS). 
 
As always, your support of ARAMARK and Millard’s Child Nutrition Programs is greatly appreciated.  If you have any 
questions or require any additional information, please do not hesitate to ask. 

Most Cordially, 

 
 
Jim Stilwell 
ARAMARK 
General Manager 
Millard Food Service 

169



Millard Food Service
Financial Summary SY2007 SY2006 DIFFERENCE GROWTH
1 Total Income 4,198,875.78$   3,862,153.43$   336,722.35$   8.7%

1A Cash Income (WinSnap) 3,287,000.90$         3,098,110.75$         188,890.15$                  6.1%

1B Federal Reimbursement Income 671,871.10$            573,135.52$            98,735.58$                    17.2%

1C State Reimbursement Income 7,360.15$                5,722.90$                1,637.25$                      28.6%

1D Contract Catering Sales 61,207.00$              60,017.60$              1,189.40$                      2.0%

1E Ad Hoc Catering Sales 26,487.06$              24,336.80$              2,150.26$                      8.8%

1F Vending Commissions 77,750.86$              81,438.76$              (3,687.90)$                     -4.5%

1G Vending Sales 51,482.45$              19,391.10$              32,091.35$                    165.5%

1H Earned Interest and Local Rebates 15,716.26$              -$                        

2 ARAMARK Expenditures 2,180,665.19$   2,030,299.60$   150,365.59$   7.4%
2A Cost Of Sales 1,644,193.66$     1,520,347.69$     123,845.97$     8.1%
2B Management Labor 73,009.74$          59,085.79$          13,923.95$       23.6%
2C Direct Expenses 380,345.39$        375,057.04$        5,288.35$         1.4%

312.00 Paper and Plastics 155,330.02$               135,886.58$               19,443.44$                    14.3%
313.11 Waste Removal 707.71$                      175.70$                      532.01$                         302.8%
314.22 Equipment Repairs 1,519.67$                   6,356.42$                   (4,836.75)$                     -76.1%
314.99 Repair & Maint - Other 10,769.72$                 7,670.07$                   3,099.65$                      40.4%
315.19  Taxes and Licenses 1,030.21$                   6,861.29$                   (5,831.08)$                     -85.0%
316.01 Empl Veh-Opr+Rental -$                           408.98$                      (408.98)$                        -100.0%
317.00 General Insurance 4,149.18$                   3,558.89$                   590.29$                         16.6%
326.02 Telephone Expense 1,477.41$                   859.32$                      618.09$                         71.9%
329.04 Management Meeting 3,697.25$                   912.63$                      2,784.62$                      305.1%
331.00 Office Supplies 2,951.57$                   3,755.16$                   (803.59)$                        -21.4%
331.02 Postage Expense 79.80$                       150.00$                      (70.20)$                          -46.8%
331.04 EDP Supplies 2,970.00$                   2,971.45$                   (1.45)$                            0.0%
331.21 Freight Expenses 272.00$                      2,032.34$                   (1,760.34)$                     -86.6%
331.31 Airborne Air Freight -$                           125.54$                      (125.54)$                        -100.0%
331.75 Technology Cost - Software 383.15$                      12,229.95$                 (11,846.80)$                   -96.9%
332.00 Adv & Promotion 329.43$                      11,128.78$                 (10,799.35)$                   -97.0%
332.10 Flowers & Decorations 869.91$                      219.56$                      650.35$                         296.2%
335.00 Professional Service 376.19$                      973.51$                      (597.32)$                        -61.4%
344.95 Security Services 18,997.00$                 15,349.50$                 3,647.50$                      23.8%
345.01 Uniforms and Laundry 30,642.51$                 28,735.06$                 1,907.45$                      6.6%
345.10 Replacements 45,833.53$                 29,006.36$                 16,827.17$                    58.0%
345.13 Delivery Expense 94,887.54$                 102,730.26$               (7,842.72)$                     -7.6%
345.99 Other Operating Exp 2,087.59$                   2,459.69$                   (372.10)$                        -15.1%
346.16 PC Deployment - Equipment 984.00$                      500.00$                      484.00$                         n/a

Management Fees 83,116.40$          75,809.08$          7,307.32$         9.6%

3 District Expenditures 1,668,598.71$   1,514,870.17$   153,728.54$   10.1%
3A LABOR: Salary Accrual 73,764.10$              62,181.52$              11,582.58$                    18.6%

3B LABOR:  Wages and Benefits 1,417,841.67$         1,341,875.80$         75,965.87$                    5.7%
3C TRANSFER: Paraprofessional 79,965.48$              78,177.56$              1,787.92$                      2.3%

3D Other District Expense 59,474.88$              30,314.95$              29,159.93$                    96.2%
3E Merchant Fees 37,552.58$              2,320.34$                35,232.24$                    1518.4%

4 349,611.89$      316,983.66$      32,628.22$     10.3%

5 193,858.58$      185,407.59$      8,450.99$       4.6%

6 64,941.16$        62,805.76$        2,135.40$       3.4%

7 90,812.15$        68,770.32$        22,041.83$     32.1%

Custodial Transfers

Year to Date

GROSS RETURN
Building Transfers

NET RETURN

Financial information is reconciled at the end of the District's fiscal year.  Until then, infomation must be viewed as educated and investigated 
estimates.  We have high confidence, as last year's reconciliation was only off by 0.017%.

170



171




AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Investment Report

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Business

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Investment Report – A report of the current investments and investment practices of the

district.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: Attached is the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending December 31, 2006.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Chris Hughes (Accounting Manager) & Ken Fossen (Assoc. Supt.)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: _______________________________

172



M i l l a r d P u b l i c S c h o o l s
Investment of Funds
December 31, 2006

Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund

The Millard Public Schools utilizes the Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund
(referred to as either NSDLAF or CADRE, the financial services firm which manages the
fund) for day-to-day investing. NSDLAF was established in 1988. The fund is offered
exclusively to Nebraska school districts, educational service units, and technical
community colleges. The fund’s objective is to allow school districts to pool their dollars
for investment. The fund invests in items permitted by Nebraska law (i.e. repurchase
agreements, U.S. Government Agency Obligations, U.S. Treasury Bills and Certificates
of Deposit).

MPS maintains two liquid accounts that can be accessed daily. The General Fund,
Food Service Fund, Administrative Activity Fund, Special Building Fund, Bond Fund,
Depreciation Fund, Construction Fund and Employee Benefit Fund utilize one account.
This account is used throughout the month as taxes, state aid, etc. are received and as
bills or payroll are paid. The other account is utilized by the various middle schools. As
of December 31, 2006, the 7-day current yield for these accounts was 4.89%. MPS also
utilizes long term fixed investments (examples: 30, 60, 90 day US Government
Securities, Certificates of Deposits, etc). The current rate of return depends on the term,
with the district currently earning 4.25% to 5.80%.

Sweep Account for General Checking Account

Each day, any balance remaining in the District’s main checking account above the
level necessary to avoid service charges is invested in either U.S. Government agency
backed repurchase agreements (amounts under $25,000) or commercial paper notes
(amounts over $25,000). The interest rate for the sweep account is currently 4.45%.

Bond Fund Trust Account at First National Bank of Omaha

Taxes and other revenues received for the repayment of bond principal and interest are
invested through the trust department at First National Bank of Omaha. The funds are
invested in U.S. Treasury Bills, individual U.S. Government Agency backed securities,
or a money market account which invests in U.S. Government backed agency
securities, based on the funds available, the time line until the next debt service
payment, and the available yields. The trust account balance as of December 31, 2006
was $59,534.53.

173



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Norris Montessori Program Evaluation

Meeting Date: January 22, 2007

Department: Planning & Evaluation

Title and Brief
Description: Program Evaluation of Norris Montessori Mini-magnet

Action Desired: Approval ___ Discussion Information Only __x__

Background: As required by board policy mini-magnet program shall
undergo program evaluation. This is the fifth year for the
Norris Montessori program.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: None.

Recommendations: Information to be used for consideration of program
effectiveness.

Strategic Plan
Reference: Strategy 2 to optimize building utilization.

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N.A.

Timeline: Use results for 2006-07 planning and beyond.

Responsible
Persons: Jon Lopez, Pat Crum

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________

174



Norris Montessori Mini-Magnet Years 3and 4 Program Evaluation

Introduction and Purpose

As required by board policy and strategic plan parameters, the office of Planning and
Evaluation carries out 5-year evaluations of all mini-magnet programs. The 2004-2005 school
year was the third and 2005-2006 was the fourth year of implementation for the Norris
Montessori mini-magnet, and the data in this report includes those school years.

The following, from the Millard Public Schools web site, presents background on the
Millard Montessori program.

The Montessori program is an option that provides an environment consistent with Dr.
Maria Montessori's philosophy in which children learn through spontaneous and prescribed
activities based on developmental needs as they become self-directed.

Program Philosophy

Dr. Maria Montessori believed that the role of education is to create a learning
laboratory where the individual is allowed to continue the developmental process, a process
begun at conception. This process assists the individual to grow up with a healthy spirit, a
strong character and a clear intellect, realizing the interdependence with all of life. The
elements of the educational process include the following:

 Methodology is based on movement, activity and habits of work and order.
 The child is guided, moving from simple to complex and concrete to abstract concepts for

perceptual and conceptual proficiency.
 The child learns through spontaneous and prescribed activities based on developmental

needs and individual learning styles.
 The child learns to become inner-directed or self-directed rather than "other-directed".
 There is intrinsic concern for rhythm, balance, and order, which make the life process

possible and provides continuity in nature and the universe.

Program Overview

 Each Montessori classroom is multi-aged, except 6th grade. Kindergarten is included in
the Montessori pre-primary classrooms for children ages three to six.

 The classroom environment is designed to facilitate maximum independent learning and
exploration by the child.

 The curriculum is interdisciplinary and interactive.
 Concepts are taught using materials that encourage exploration, independence and

analytical thinking.
 Physical Education and music are taught on a daily rotation basis for 20 - 30 minutes,

depending on the age of the child.
 Drama and art are integrated into the prepared environment.

175



Participation in 2004-2005 and 2005-2006

In 2004-2005, the third year of the Norris Montessori program, there were two
classrooms that served, preschool and kindergarten students and two classrooms that served first
grade and second grade students. In 2005-2006, the fourth year of the Norris Montessori
program, there were two classrooms that served, preschool and kindergarten students and three
classrooms that served first grade, second grade, and third grade students. In 2002-2003 and
2003-2004 the large classroom counts resulted from both full and half day enrollment.
Enrollment counts for all four years of this program are summarized in the following table.

Norris Montessori Enrollment by Year

Grade 2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006

PS 29 31 20 17
KG 19 20 23 23
1 24 16 24
2 21 16
3 22

One goal of the Norris Montessori program is to counter declining enrollment at Norris
by drawing students from outside the Norris attendance area. The table below shows the schools
to which students were assigned based on their housing areas. In 2003-2004 thirty nine students
enrolled in the Norris Montessori program were from outside its attendance area. This increased
to fifty-three in 2004-2005 and seventy six in 2005-2006.

Assigned School Count 2003-2004 Count 2004-2005 Count 2005-2006
Ackerman 1 3 8
Aldrich 3 2 2
Black Elk 1 3 7
Bryan 1 2 4
Disney 3 3 4
Ezra Millard 1
Harvey Oaks 1 3 3
Hitchcock 2 4 5
Holling Heights 4 5 2
Morton 1 4
Neihardt 5 8 9
Norris 5 6 10
Option Enrollment 7 6 5
Reeder 3 5
Rockwell 4 3 7
Rohwer 1 2 5
Sandoz 3 2 2
Wheeler 2 1 2
Willowdale 1 2 1

176



Assessment Data

First graders participated in 2 district-wide Essential Learner Outcome assessments: First
Grade Language Arts and First Grade Analytical Writing Assessment (AWA). Mastery levels
for Norris Montessori students were compared to those of Montclair Montessori students and to
all non-Montessori students district wide. The percent of students mastering these assessments
during the 2003-2004 through 2005-2006 school years are shown in the tables below:

1st Grade Language Arts by Year
2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006

Mastered ELO Mastered ELO Mastered ELOGroup

No Yes No Yes No Yes
Norris Montessori 4.17% 95.83% 6.25% 93.75% 4.55% 95.45%
Montclair Montessori 2.38% 97.62% 10.87% 89.13% 7.14% 92.86%
District Non-Montessori 9.09% 90.91% 8.05% 91.95% 7.69% 92.31%

1st Grade AWA by Year
2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006

Mastered ELO Mastered ELO Mastered ELOGroup

No Yes No Yes No Yes
Norris Montessori 4.35% 95.65% 18.75% 81.25% 0.00% 100.00%
Montclair Montessori 4.76% 95.24% 6.98% 93.02% 6.90% 93.10%
District Non-Montessori 4.05% 95.95% 13.09% 86.91% 7.40% 92.60%

Second graders participated in 2 district-wide Essential Learner Outcome assessments:
Second Grade Mathematics and Second Grade Analytical Writing Assessment (AWA). Mastery
levels for Norris Montessori students were compared to those of Montclair Montessori students
and to all non-Montessori students district wide. The percent of students mastering these
assessments are shown in the tables below:

2nd Grade Math by Year
2004-2005 2005-2006

Mastered ELO Mastered ELO
Group No Yes No Yes
Norris Montessori 14.29% 85.71% 6.25% 93.75%
Montclair Montessori 19.44% 80.56% 0.00% 100.00%
District Non-Montessori 9.19% 90.81% 6.12% 93.88%

2nd Grade AWA 2004-2005
2004-2005 2005-2006

Mastered ELO Mastered ELO
Group No Yes No Yes
Norris Montessori 19.05% 80.95% 25.00% 75.00%
Montclair Montessori 11.76% 88.24% 2.94% 97.06%
District Non-Montessori 14.45% 85.55% 12.34% 87.66%

177



Third graders participated in 3 district-wide Essential Learner Outcome assessments:
Third Grade Reading, Third Grade Mathematics and Third Grade Analytical Writing Assessment
(AWA). Mastery levels for Norris Montessori students were compared to those of Montclair
Montessori students and to all non-Montessori students district wide. The percent of students
mastering these assessments are shown in the tables below:

3rd Grade Reading 2005-2006
Mastered ELO

Group No Yes
Norris Montessori 4.76% 95.24%
Montclair Montessori 3.85% 96.15%
District Non-Montessori 10.44% 89.56%

3rd Grade Math 2005-2006
Mastered ELO

Group No Yes
Norris Montessori 14.29% 85.71%
Montclair Montessori 15.38% 84.62%
District Non-Montessori 12.41% 87.27%

3rd Grade AWA 2005-2006
Mastered ELO

Group No Yes
Norris Montessori 9.09% 90.91%
Montclair Montessori 13.04% 86.96%
District Non-Montessori 12.41% 87.59%

Mastery levels for the Norris Montessori students were comparable to those of the
Montclair Montessori students and to those of non-Montessori Millard students. The small
differences in percent mastery between the three student groups are not statistically significant
due to the small sample size available for the Montessori classrooms.

Costs

The initial cost to set up a Montessori classroom includes the cost of a set of Montessori
materials for each classroom. Purchasing the materials for a new first grade classroom for 2003-
2004 cost about $14,000. A new first/second grade classroom was set up for 2004-2005;
purchasing Montessori materials for that classroom cost about $14,700. A new first/second/third
grade classroom was set up for 2005-2006; purchasing Montessori materials for that classroom
cost about $19,200.

178



Class size comparisons for Norris Montessori classrooms, Norris traditional classrooms, and
District non-Montessori classrooms are compared in the table below. In this table, the Norris
Montessori Kindergarten classroom sizes appear to be small due to the fact that paid Preschool
students make up approximately half the population of those classrooms. Those classrooms
average 22-24 Preschool and Kindergarten students. Millard Public Schools pays for half of the
salary of those Preschool/Kindergarten classroom teachers. The other half is paid by the
Preschool Program.

Class Size by Year
2004-2005 2005-2006

Grade Level Kindergarten 1st Grade 2nd Grade Kindergarten 1st Grade 2nd Grade 3rd Grade
Norris
Montessori 11 18.5 18.5 11.5 20.7 20.7 20.7
Norris
Traditional 15.5 23.0 15.5 20.0 17.0 22.5 18.0

District Ave. 20.4 20.4 19.9 20.0 19.9 21.0 20.5

Summary and Conclusions

The Norris Montessori mini-magnet completed its third year in 2004-2005 with two
classrooms serving preschool and preprimary students and two classrooms serving first grade
and second grade students. In 2005-2006 the Norris Montessori mini-magnet completed its
fourth year with two classrooms serving preschool and preprimary students and three classrooms
serving first grade, second grade and third grade students. The plan is that one grade will be
added each year, until the program spans preschool through fifth grade.

The goal of drawing students to Norris from outside the Norris attendance area was
realized with 88.9% of the Norris Montessori enrollment, over that past three years coming, from
outside its attendance area.

Certified teacher costs for the Norris Montessori program were comparable to building
and district kindergarten and first grade teacher costs, as estimated by class size. Classroom
startup costs of approximately $15,000 for each year were predicted as the program adds one
grade level each year until it includes fifth grade in 2007-2008

Norris Montessori assessment data has been collected and compared to other groups.
Percent mastery levels on the district-wide Essential Learner Outcome assessments for Norris
Montessori students were comparable to those in the more established Montclair Montessori
program and to non-Montessori students district-wide.

179



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Legislative Update

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2007

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Legislative Update for the 100th Legislature.

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY XX

Issues and Happening
Senator Raikes is the chair for the Education Committee and Senator Kopplin is the vice chair. There are
five new members on the committee. The Education Committee will hold hearings on Mondays and
Tuesdays at 1:30.

Dates and Reminders
The Legislature will be in recess February 9th and 16th and on Holiday February 19th. The last day of the
session is May 31st.

Legislation we are tracking:
 LB 13 (Mines) – provides for creation and certification of joint entities via Interlocal Cooperation Act.
 LB 21 (Raikes) – change school finance provisions relating to cost growth factor (early childhood).
 LB 30 (Hudkins) – provides for the reorganization of Class I school districts.
 LB 50 (Hudkins) – prohibits the state from seeking reimbursement from employees for use of vacation

leave (Roseland Case).
 LB 57 (Priester) – allows fair share contributions for labor representation by labor organizations.
 LB 66 (Stuthman) – requires school districts to develop driver safety courses.
 LB 72 (Fischer) – prohibits beginning a school year before Labor Day.
 LB 91 (Cornett) – change boundary provisions relating to learning communities (pulls Bellevue out).
 LB 170 (Kopplin) – change the tax levy authority of ESU units (from 1.5 to 2.5cents).
 LB 187(Mines) – will prohibit interlocal agreements with certain joint entities (OPPD, ESU).
 LB 205 (Howard) – requires schools to adopt a bullying policy.
 LB 234 (Dierks) – provides for the reorganization of Class I school districts.
 LB 241 (Hudkins) – requires the state to pay teachers’ salaries.
 LB 361 (Raikes) – prohibit use of public funds for dues or membership fees.
 LB 547 (Kopplin) – adopt the Nebraska Student Advantage Act

STRATEGIC PLAN: Implemented Strategies and Superintendent’s Goals

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:
(Signature)

180



1

NINETY-NINTH LEGISLATURE
SECOND SESSION

Revised January 17, 2007

The following represent bills and constitutional amendments introduced during the 2007 First
Session of the 100th Legislature that may affect Millard Public Schools or education in general.
(“New” information will be in boldface.) “Hot bills” are shown with a border. Bills that have
been passed, indefinitely postponed or withdrawn are listed last.

“Hot” bills will be in a “hot box.”

Abbreviations Used for Status of Bills

HC Held in Committee LIV Line Item Veto
GF General File VO Veto Overridden
SF Select File W Withdrawn
FR Final Reading P Passed by Legislature
IPP Indefinitely Postponed (killed) S Signed by Governor
V Vetoed * Senator Priority Bill
HD Hearing Date ** Committee Priority Bill
--LB Amended into another bill *** Speaker Priority Bill
CA Constitutional Amendment LR Legislative Resolution
FA Floor Amendment

 LB 3 (Pahls) Provide a sales tax holiday for school-related purchases (Revenue
Committee) (HD: 1/18)

 LB 7 (Preister) Change the rights of the public regarding agenda items under the
Open Meetings Act (HD: 1/18)

 LB 13 (Mines) Provide for the creation and certification of joint entities under the
Interlocal Cooperation Act (Government Committee)

 LB 21 (Raikes) Change school finance provisions relating to the cost growth factor
(HD: 1/16)

 LB 30 (Hudkins, Fischer) Provide for reorganization of certain Class I and Class VI
school districts

 LB 39 (Schimek, Friend, Mines, et. al) Provide restrictions relating to petition
circulation and change campaign reporting provisions (HD: 1/17)

 LB 40 (Schimek, Friend, Mines, et. al) Require an initiative and referendum petition
circulators to wear an identification badge (HD: 1/17)

181



2

 LB 50 (Hudkins) Prohibit the state from seeking reimbursement from employees for
use of vacation leave (HD: 1/18)

 LB 57 (Preister, Cornett, Howard, et. al) Provide for fair share representation
contributions for certain labor representation by labor organizations

 LB 60 (Avery) Provide a sales tax holiday for school-related purchases (HD: 1/18)

 LB 66 (Stuthman, Janssen, Louden) Require school districts to develop driver safety
courses

 LB 72 (Fischer) Prohibit beginning a school year before Labor Day

 LB 73 (McGill) Change school breakfast reimbursement provisions

 LB 81 (Schimek, Howard, McGill, et. al) Create the offense of school trespass and
prohibit certain activities of registered sex offenders

 LB 91 (Cornett) Change boundary provisions relating to learning communities

 LB 101 (Erdman) Clarify that only one parent need sign the statement regarding
private schools that elect not to meet accreditation of approval (Education Committee)
(HD: 1/22)

 LB 139 (Flood) Change reimbursement provisions under the Special Education Act
(Education Committee)

 LB 150 (Adams) Change provisions relating to certificate fees paid to the State
Department of Education (Education Committee) (HD: 1/22)

 LB 153 (Aguilar, Kopplin, McDonald, et. al) Change provisions relating to legal
actions over school districts in annexed territory (Education Committee)

 LB 166 (Revenue Committee)) Change provisions relating to property taxation and
assessment (Revenue Committee) (HD: 1/17)

 LB 167 (Revenue Committee) Change property tax provisions relating to appeals,
equalization, and assessor certification (Revenue Committee) (HD: 1/17)

 LB 170 (Kopplin) Change the tax levy authority of educational service units
(Revenue Committee)

 LB 175 (Cornett) Require employer to provide employee a reason for termination
(Business Committee)

 LB 187 (Mines) Prohibit certain interlocal agreements (Government Committee)

 LB 193 (Howard) Provide for a special authorization for teachers not addressed by an
existing endorsement (Education Committee)

182



3

 LB 197 (Schimek) Change the Political Subdivisions Tort Claims Act (Judiciary
Committee)

 LB 205 (Howard, Ashford, Avery, et. al) Require schools to adopt a bullying policy
(Education Committee)

 LB 208 (Aguilar) Change bond requirements for certain public building projects
(Government Committee)

 LB 219 (Dierks, Dubas) Change requirements for freeholder petitions (Education
Committee)

 LB 230 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to resident students for purposes of
certain reorganizations (Education Committee)

 LB 231 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to the Early Childhood Training Center
(Education Committee) (HD: 1/22)

 LB 234 (Dierks) Provide for reorganization of certain school districts as prescribed
(Education Committee)

 LB 241 (Hudkins) Require the state to pay teachers' salaries as prescribed
(Government Committee) (HD: 1/22)

 LB 279 (Stuthman) Change provisions relating to driver training schools
(Transportation Committee)

 LB 289 (Louden, Burling, Christensen, et. al) Change procedure relating to elections
to exceed the tax levy limit (Government Committee)

 LB 298 (Burling) Change the number of signatures required on nominating petitions
(Government Committee)

 LB 301 (Janssen) Extend the current distribution of state lottery proceeds until 2013
(General Affairs Committee)

 LB 311 (Aguilar) Change provisions relating to petition signature verification
(Government Committee)

 LB 316 (Friend, Raikes) Create the Special Education Services Task Force
(Government Committee)

 LB 340 (Wightman, Avery, Carlson, et. al) Authorize a local option income tax for
school capital construction purposes (Revenue Committee)

 LB 353 (Legislative Performance Audit Committee) Change the Quality Education
Accountability Act (Education Committee)

183



4

 LB 356 (Cornett, Christensen, Gay, et. al) Change provisions relating to greenbelted
agricultural land (Revenue Committee)

 LB 357 (Flood) Provide for community schools, operating councils, elementary
grants, and attendance centers (Education Committee)

 LB 361 (Raikes) Prohibit use of public funds for dues or membership fees as
prescribed (Government Committee)

 LB 389 (Aguilar) Change provisions relating to public records

 LB 391 (Mines) Change provisions relating to public records and meetings

 LB 416 (Karpisek) Exempt government retirement benefits from income tax

 LB 430 (Langemeier) Change property tax levies

 LB 431 (Friend) Provide an income tax credit for certain educational expenses

 LB 440 (Preister) Change and eliminate provisions relating to learning communities

 LB 448 (Ashford) Change limitation of action provisions under the Political
Subdivisions Tort Claims Act

 LB 450 (Ashford) Provide immunity for employer disclosure of certain employee
information

 LB 452 (Burling) Appropriate funds for drug abuse prevention and education
programs

 LB 455 (White) Allow school districts to exceed applicable allowable growth rate for
increased energy or insurance costs

 LB 547 (Kopplin) Adopt the Nebraska Student Advantage Act

 LR 2CA (Rogert) Constitutional amendment changing provisions related to
substandard and blighted property (Urban Affairs Committee)

 LR 6CA (Avery, Aguilar, Fischer, et. al) Constitutional amendment to provide for
investment by political subdivisions (Urban Affairs Committee)

 LR 8CA (Avery) Constitutional amendment to change signature requirements for
initiative petitions (Government Committee)

 LR 11CA (Flood) Constitutional amendment to change the distribution of lottery
proceeds

184



5

Prepared by: Approved by:
Angelo D. Passarelli Keith W. Lutz
Director of Administrative Affairs Superintendent of Schools

185


	Board Meeting - January 22, 2007
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Minutes - January 8, 2007
	Financials
	E.4. Committee Meeting Minutes- January 15, 2007
	F.1. Employees of the Month 
	H.1. Approval to Establish new Board Committee Positions
	H.2. Approval of Board Appointments
	H.3. Approval of the School Calendar for 2008-2009
	H.4. First Reading of Policy 4173 - Human Resources - Drug Free Workplace
	H.5. Approval of Rule 6675.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Exempt Schools: Requests for Programs, Services or Materials
	H.6.  Approval of Rule 6680.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Nonpublic Schools:  Requests for Programs, Services or Materials
	H.7. Audit Management Letter.
	H.8. Award Construction Contract for Upchurch Elementary
	H.9. Award of Contract for Sandoz Pre-Purchase Items
	H.10. Administrators for Hire or Reassignment
	Ackerman Elementary
	Cather Elementary
	Cody Elementary
	Ezra Millard Elementary
	Neihardt Elementary
	Millard North High School
	Reassignment Upchurch Elementary
	H.11. Personnel Actions:  Amended Contract(s), Leave(s) of Absence, Resignation(s), Voluntary Separation Program, and New Hires
	I.1. Bond Construction Report
	I.2. Quarterly Special Projects Report (Non-Bond Issue Related)
	I.3. Quarterly Operation and Maintenance Report
	I.4. Quarterly Food Service Report
	I.5. Quarterly Investment Report
	I.6. Norris Montessori Program Evaluation
	I.7. Legislative Update
	AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET Rules 4173.pdf
	4173.1.pdf
	Generated_1-16-2007_3-4-13-P.cfm





